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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Ninth (29%) Annual General Meeting of the Members
of IFCI Factors Limited will be held on Thursday, the 26" day of September, 2024 at 10:00 A.M.
through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Video Means (OAVM) in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Circulars issued by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs in this regard, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2024 and the report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon by passing the
following resolution.

“"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2024 including Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Profit &
Loss Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024 along
with the Cash Flow Statement derived from the Financial Statement for the year ended March
31, 2024 and Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March
31, 2024, together with Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, be and are hereby
adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Ashok Kumar Motwani (DIN: 00088225), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and to pass the following
Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013
and Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof) Ashok Kumar Motwani (DIN: 00088225),
who was appointed on August 09, 2021 as Director liable to retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting held and who retires by rotation at this meeting, and being eligible for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as Director (Non-executive) of the Company,
whose period of office shall be liable to determination by retirement by rotation.”

3. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-
25 as appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India and to pass the following
Resolution, with or without modification(s), as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(5), 142 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to decide and fix
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the remuneration of the Statutory Auditor(s) of the Company appointed by Comptroller and
Auditor General of India for the Financial Year 2024-25, as may be deemed fit.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Appointment of Mr. Himanshu Sharma (DIN No.- 07161097) as a Director of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant rules made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Himanshu Sharma (DIN
No.- 07161097), who was appointed as Additional Director of the Company w.e.f. September
04, 2024 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a member
(IFCI Limited) proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed
as a Director (Non-Executive) of the Company liable to retire by rotation.”

By Order of Board of Directors

September 04, 2024 Smit Kumar
New Delhi Company Secretary

IFCI Factors Limited

Registered Office:

7% Floor, IFCI Tower, 61,

Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019
CIN: U74899DL1995G01074649
Phone: +91-11-41642805
Website: www.ifcifactors.com
Email: smitkumar@ifcifactors.com

Notes:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has vide its circular dated 29" December 2022
read with circulars dated 8th April 2020 and 13th April 2020 (collectively referred to as
'MCA Circulars’) permitted holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM") through
VC/OAVM facility, without the physical presence of the members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act”) and MCA Circulars,
the AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM hereinafter called as ‘e-
AGM'.
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10.

11.

12

13.

The deemed venue for the 29" e-AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company at
7th Floor, IFCI Tower, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019.

Attendance of the Members participating in the 29" AGM through VC/OAVM Facility shall
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not
be a member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars
through VC/OAVM facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with.
Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available
for the e-AGM and hence the Proxy Form are not annexed to this Notice.
Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF etc.) are required to
send a scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its board or governing body's
Resolution/authorisation, etc., authorising their representative to attend the AGM on its
behalf and to vote. The said resolution/authorisation may be sent to by e- mail through
their registered email address to smitkumar@ifcifactors.com.

The facility of joining the e-AGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before and
will be open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the e-AGM.

In terms of sections 101 and 136 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder,
companies may send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including financial
statements, boards’ report, etc. by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said provisions of the
Act read with MCA Circulars, notice of the 29" e-AGM along with the Annual Report for FY
2023-2024 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company. Members may note that the Notice and
Annual Report for FY 2023-2024 will also be available on the Company’s website at
www.ifcifactors.com

Members shall receive necessary information/procedure separately at their registered e-
mail addresses to enable them to access the audio-video facility for participation in the
meeting.

Members are informed that in case a demand for poll is made by any member in respect
to any item, the members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending emails
through email addresses which are registered with the Company. The voting shall be sent
to the Company by e-mail through its registered email address to
smitkumar@ifcifactors.com.

Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register
their e-mail address to smitkumar@ifcifactors.com for receiving all communication
including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.
Members are requested to kindly communicate immediately any change in their address,
if any, to the Company Secretary at the Registered Office of the Company.

. All documents referred to in the Notice calling the AGM and the Explanatory Statement

are available with the Company for inspection by the Members. The same will be shared
with the members on receipt of request.

Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/OAVM facility, attendance slip and route
map is not annexed to this Notice.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013

ITEM No.4

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 04, 2024, appointed Mr. Himanshu
Sharma (DIN- 07161097), as Additional Director w.e.f. September 03, 2024. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors at its meeting held on September 04, 2024
recommended the appointment of Mr. Himanshu Sharma as Director liable to retire by rotation
based on the candidature for his appointment as Director received from him.

The brief profile of Mr. Himanshu Sharma is given below.

Mr. Himanshu Sharma is an accomplished professional with an MBA in Human Resource
Management from Panjab University. With over 23 years of experience, he has held key positions
at IFCI Ltd., including General Manager (Human Resources) and Managing Director of HIMCON
(erstwhile Associate organisation of IFCI Ltd). His expertise spans performance management,
talent management, compensation, and employee relations. Mr. Himanshu has successfully
implemented HR strategies, conducted training programs, and managed HR processes,
contributing significantly to organizational growth and employee satisfaction.

Except Mr. Himanshu Sharma being appointee none of the Director/Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested in the resolution.
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Name

Mr. Ashok Kumar Motwani

Mr. Himanshu Sharma

Date of Birth, Age

17/11/1956, 64

22/03/1978, 46

DIN No.

00088225

07161097

Qualifications

B.Com, MBA and CAIIB

MBA (Human Resource
Management) , Punjab
University

Date of first appointment
on Board

19/08/2021

03/09/2024

Experience

Mr. Ashok Kumar Motwani is a
Finance professional with over
three decades of experience in
the core areas of Investment &

Corporate  Banking, Project
Appraisal and Advisory
services, Structured Finance,

Debt Syndication, Trusteeship
Activities, Custodial Services,
NPA resolution etc. The above
experience includes 4 years
stint as Managing Director &
CEO of IDBI Trusteeship
Services Ltd. (ITSL). From May
2011 till July 2014, he was
Managing Director & CEO of
Stock Holding Corporation of
India Ltd (SHCIL), (on
deputation from IDBI Bank).
IDBI Bank divested its entire
shareholding in SHCIL and he
opted to get repatriated to his
parent organization viz. IDBI
Bank in August 2014. He took
premature retirement as Chief
General Manager of IDBI Bank
in August 2016.

With over 23 vyears of
experience, he has held key
positions at IFCI Ltd.,
including General Manager
(Human  Resources) and
Managing Director of HIMCON
(erstwhile Associate
organisation of IFCI Limited).

His expertise spans
performance  management,
talent management,

compensation, and employee
relations. Shri Himanshu has
successfully implemented HR
strategies, conducted training
programs, and managed HR

processes, contributing
significantly to organizational
growth and employee
satisfaction.

Terms and condition of
Appointment

Appointed as Non-Executive,
Non-Independent Director

Appointed as Non-Executive,
Non-Independent Director

No. of Meetings of the
Board attended during the
financial year 2023-24.

5/5

N/A
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(Attended/Held)
Other Directorships 1. Stock Holding Corporation of Nil
India Limited.
Membership/ Stock Holding Corporation of
Chairmanship of India Ltd.
Committees of other Boards | Member of following None
Committee
» CSR Committee
» Audit Committee
» Nomination & Remuneration
Committee
» New Initiative Committee
Remuneration Entitled for sitting fees as per N/A
Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company for
attending Meetings of Board &
Committees
Relationship with other
Director inter-se and with
. None None
Key Managerial Personnel of
the Company
Shareholding in the Nil Nil

Company
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS
The Board of Directors of your Company (“Company” or “IFL") is presenting the 29" Annual
Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statement for the year ended on
March 31, 2024.

Financial Summary

The Financial Results of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24 as per Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind - AS) are summarized below:

(Rs. in lakh)
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Total Income 2,188.17 1,475.57
Expenditure
- Finance Cost 215.05 1,470.78
- Employee benefits Expenses 349.68 551.25
- Depreciation, amortization & impairment 7.08 16.49
- Impairment on Financial Assets 1617.03 (798.04)
- Other Expenses 155.13 289.44
Total Expenditure 2,344.57 1,529.92
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (156.40) (54.34)
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax (156.40) (54.34)
Tax Expense
- Current Tax - -
- Deferred Tax 8637.51 (367.49)
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (8,793.91) (421.83)

State of affairs of the Company

The exposures taken by your Company during earlier years were primarily by way of Factoring
products, which are generally unsecured and not backed by collateral. Adverse
macroeconomic conditions and industry developments caused significant deterioration in the
financial position and performance of borrowers and their debtors, which resulted in
deterioration of asset quality and increase in Non-Performing Assets (NPAs). Over the years
your Company made persistent efforts towards recovery from stressed assets and NPAs.
However, the company faced various challenges including no recourse to the Debt Recovery
Tribunal (DRT), lengthy legal proceedings, remote possibility of recovery under IBC as an
unsecured creditor etc. In certain exposures where your company had collateral, the company
faced challenges in monetizing the collateral in a timely manner owing to volatility in market
conditions as also other externalities that created impediments to recovery under the
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SARFAESI Act, 2002. Accordingly, recovery has been uncertain, long drawn, sporadic and
subdued in comparison to the exposures taken.

On the liability side, the outstanding Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of Rs.141.10 crore
issued by your company in 2013 fell due for repayment in April and May 2023. Considering
the subdued recovery and the need to generate liquidity to meet the debt servicing obligations,
the Board of directed the Company to focus on clean-up of the Balance Sheet and monetization
of its legacy accounts in a time bound manner. During FY 2023-24, your company monetized
57 accounts by way of assignment to Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) by way of open
market processes. In the interim, your Company also availed a Bridge Loan Facility of Rs.19
crore from the Holding Company, IFCI Limited for liquidity support to repay its outstanding
Non Convertible Debentures. The steps taken by your Company ensured that all its debt
servicing obligations towards the NCDs were honoured without any delays. The Bridge Loan
Facility availed by the Company was also entirely repaid during the financial year. Your
company did not have any external borrowings as on March 31, 2024.

The Board of Directors of your Company accorded in-principle approval for surrender of your
Company’s Certificate of Registration (CoR) as an NBFC-Factor upon monetization of its
financial assets. The monetization of the last 5 financial assets of your company crystalized
only during FY 2024-25. Further action in respect of surrender of the CoR will be taken in
consultation with the promoters. In this regard, it is submitted that IFCI Factors Limited is a
Government of India Company and there are specific guidelines for closure of Government
Companies, which have not been invoked for your company. As on date the CoR has not been
surrendered.

Certificate of Registration as NBFC-Factor

Your Company holds a Certificate of Registration as NBFC—Factor issued by Reserve Bank of
India and is a Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important NBFC Factor (NBFC—ND- SI-Factor).
The company is a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) as defined in section 45-1 (a) of
the RBI Act and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as an NBFC — Factor with
the RBI. As regards the Principal Business Criteria as laid down vide the Reserve Bank's press
release dated April 08, 1999, and directions issued by DNBR, your company reports that as
on March 31, 2024, the percentage of factoring assets to total assets was nil and was at
variance with the stipulated ratio of 50% owing to closure / assignment of all factoring
accounts. Pursuant to the monteization of all factoring accounts, the percentage of factoring
income to total income is nil as on June 30, 2024, which is at variance with the stipulated ratio
of 50%.

Dividend

With regard to the performance of your Company for the period ended on March 31, 2024, in
view of losses for the year, no dividend on Equity Shares has been recommended by the Board
for the year ended March 31, 2024. In view of loss incurred by the Company, the arrear of
dividend on 9% Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares and 10% Compulsory
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Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares amounting to Rs.61.03 crore stands accumulated
to the next year.

Transfer to Reserves

Your Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve in Financial Year 2023-24,
as it has incurred a loss after tax of Rs.(8,793.91) lakh.

Capital Structure / alteration of Share Capital

The capital structure of your Company is as follows:

Authorized Share Capital

30,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 300,00,00,000/-.
20,00,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10/-each aggregating to Rs. 200,00,00,000/-.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

27,94,38,860 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 2,79,43,88,600 /-.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no change in Authorized Share Capital, Issued,
Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of your Company.

Change in status of your Company

There has been no change in status of your Company, during the financial year ended 31
March, 2024.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Board of Directors of your Company consists of six Directors as on March 31, 2024, which
includes five Non-Executive Directors and one Managing Director. Mr. Manoj Mittal (MD &
CEO, IFCI Limited) ceased as Nominee Director (Non-Executive) and Chairman of IFCI Factors
Limited (IFL) w.e.f. December 20, 2023 due to withdrawal of his nomination by IFCI Limited
(Holding Company) and Mr. Rahul Bhave (DMD, IFCI Limited) was appointed as Nominee
Director (Non-Executive) and Chairman w.e.f. December 20, 2023. Mr. Chirag Sapra was
appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of IFL and Mr. Manish Jain ceased as CFO of IFL
w.e.f. September 21, 2023. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mr. Sachikanta Mishra, Non-Executive Director, will retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for reappointment at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting.
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During the year under review, the change in the composition of Board of Directors was as
follows:

i) Mr. Manoj Mittal ceased as Nominee Director (Non-Executive) and Chairman of IFCI
Factors Limited (IFL) w.e.f. December 20, 2023 due to withdrawal of his nomination by
IFCI Limited (Holding Company) and Mr. Rahul Bhave (DMD, IFCI) was appointed as
Nominee Director (Non-Executive) and Chairman of IFL w.e.f. December 20, 2023;

ii) Mr. Chirag Sapra was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of IFL and Mr. Manish
Jain ceased as CFO of IFL w.e.f. September 21, 2023.

Nomination & Remuneration Policy

In compliance with the provisions of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules
made thereunder, your Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

Board Evaluation

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of sub section (2), (3) and (4)
of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your Company being a Government Company is
not required to disclose the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and carry out the evaluation
of every Director’s performance. However, as a good practice, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and Board have carried out the evaluation of individual directors,
the Committees of the Board and the Board as a whole for FY 2023-24.

Particulars of Employees

As on March 31, 2024 IFL had 13 full time employees. With the reduction in level of operations,
in order to ensure the optimum utilization of manpower, IFL has deputed 9 out of 13
employees to IFCI group companies.

Managerial Remuneration

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Government companies are exempted form complying with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder. Your company being a
Government Company is exempted from including the requisite information as a part of
Director’s Report.

Contracts or arrangements with Related Parties

The Related Party Transactions during the year have been disclosed in the note no. 31 to the
Notes to Accounts and Form No. AOC-2. The Related Party Transactions were in the normal
course of business and were carried out at arm'’s length basis. The Policy on Related Party

10
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Transactions as approved by the Board of Directors and Form AOC-2 is enclosed as Annexure
I. The said Policy is also uploaded on the website of your Company at www.ifcifactors.com.

Annual Return

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company shall place a copy of the
annual return in prescribed format on the website of the company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, your Company had constituted a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. In terms of provisions of Section 135 (1)
every company having net worth of Rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of Rupees
one thousand crore or more or a net profit of Rupees five crore or more during the immediately
preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the
Board consisting of three or more Directors, out of which at least one director shall be an
independent director.

However, as per provisions of rule 3(2) of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, every company which ceases to be a company covered under section 135 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 for three consecutive financial years shall not be required to constitute
a CSR Committee and comply with the provisions contained in Section 135 (2) to (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013. In view of the above mentioned provisions, IFCI Factors Ltd. didn't fall
under the criteria mentioned in Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for three
consecutive financial years and hence the CSR Committee was dissolved by the Board in its
meeting held on October 08, 2021.

Fixed Deposits

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, your Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public. A confirmation by the Board in this regard has been submitted to RBI.

Number of meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals and the maximum interval between any two meetings
did not exceed the maximum interval as per the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board met five times during the Financial Year 2023-2024 viz., on May 12, 2023, May 22,
2023, August 09, 2023, November 07, 2023, and February 07, 2024.

Composition of Audit Committee

The details of composition of Audit Committee forms part of the Corporate Governance Report
appearing separately in the Annual Report.

11



%
' Fclﬁn\?.\:‘)ks

[FCI Factors Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Your Directors would further like to inform that there has been no matter where the Board
has not accepted recommendations of the Audit Committee.

Disclosure as per Sexual Harassment of Women At Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a
policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with
the provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. The Company has an Internal
Complaint Committee to redress any issue related to sexual harassment in the organisation
and to provide a safe and secure environment to employees in the organisation.

The disclosure as required under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 for Financial Year 2023-24 is given below:

Number of complaints filed during the financial year: Nil
Number of complaints disposed of during the financial year: Nil
Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

Independent Directors’ Declaration

IFCI Factors Limited is a Government Company, the power to appoint the Independent
Directors vests with the Administrative Ministry in charge i.e. Ministry of Finance, Department
of Financial Services (DFS). DFS has already been requested to appoint Independent Directors.
Since there is no independent director on the Board of Directors, the criteria of independence
as prescribed under Sec 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the directors hereby confirm
that:

i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial Year 2023-24, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures;

ii) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
loss of the Company for that period;

ii) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act. They confirm that there
are adequate systems and controls for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

iv) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

12
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v) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and operating properly;

vi) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively; and

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

As your Company is engaged in the business of financing Corporates in the capacity of being
a Non-Banking Financial Company, therefore the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, except for Sub-Section (1) are not applicable to your Company.

Internal Financial Control

The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements adopted by the Company
are adequate and operating effectively.

Qualifications, Reservation or Adverse Remark or Disclaimer made by the
Statutory Auditor

The Financial Results of the Company for the financial year FY 2023-24 were unqualified by
the Statutory Auditors of the Company. However, the Statutory Auditors provided for certain
‘Emphasis of Matter’. The complete Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
form part of the Annual Report.

Secretarial Audit Report

The Board of Directors of your Company appointed Ms. Neha Jain, Practicing Company
Secretary, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your Company. The Secretarial Audit Report for
the FY 2023-24, as issued by them is enclosed as Annexure II. The Observations made by the
Secretarial Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year 2023-24 and
management replies thereon are as follows:-

Observations Management'’s Reply

(i)

(i)

The Board of Directors of the Company is
duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors except Independent Directors.

The Company was not in compliance with
the provisions of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of
Companies (Appointment and Qualification
of Directors) Rules, 2014, in respect of the
appointment of requisite number of

In the absence of Independent Directors
on the Board of the Company, the
Company is not in compliance with the
provisions of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Since IFCI Factors Limited is a
Government Company, the power to
appoint the Independent Directors vests
with the Administrative Ministry in
charge i.e. Ministry of Finance,
Department of Financial Services (DFS).

13
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Observations

Management'’s Reply

(iii)

Independent Directors, as there is no
independent director on the Board of the
Company. The Company is a Government
Company in terms of Companies Act, 2013
a prior approval from the Ministry of
Finance to appoint any Independent
Director on the Board of the Company,
which is pending.

The composition, chairmanship and
quorum of meetings of Audit Committee &
Nomination & Remuneration Committee,
Risk  Management Committee and
composition of Stakeholders Relationship
Committee were not in compliance with
section 177 & 178 of the Companies Act,
2013.

DFS has already been requested to
appoint Independent Directors. Vide
letter dated May 13, 2023, DFS has
advised subsidiaries of IFCI to submit
the request for filling up the post of
Independent Directors to the parent
company, IFCI Limited.

IFL has been following up with IFCI
Limited on the said matter and the last
request was made vide email dated July
15, 2024. IFL has submitted its request
to IFCI Limited for appointment of 2
Independent Directors on the Board of
IFCI Factors Limited.

Due to absence of Independent
Directors on the Board of the Company,
the Audit Committee, Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and Risk

Management and Asset Liability
Management Committee were
constituted without Independent

Directors. Once the requisite number of
Independent Directors are appointed,
the Committees will be accordingly
constituted.

Risk Management

Your Company has in place approved Risk Management Policy wherein all material risks faced
by your Company are identified and assessed. Further, Risk Management is overseen by the
Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Committee/Audit Committee on a
continuous basis.

Material changes and commitment affecting financial position of the Company

Your company has monetized all its factoring / loan exposures and investments in Seurity
Receipts. During FY 2023-24, your company monetized 57 accounts by way of assignment to
Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC) by way of open market processes. As part of the
monetization process your company has also sold / assigned 5 financial assets to IFCI Limited
during Q1 FY 2024-25 after running open market based processes. As on June 30, 2024, your
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company has monetized all its factoring, loan exposures and its investment in Security
Receipts.

Your Company holds a Certificate of Registration as NBFC—Factor issued by Reserve Bank of
India and is a Non-Deposit taking Systemically Important NBFC Factor (NBFC—ND- SI-Factor).
As regards the Principal Business Criteria as laid down vide the Reserve Bank's press release
dated April 08, 1999, and directions issued by DNBR, your company reports that as on March
31, 2024, the percentage of factoring assets to total assets was nil and was at variance with
the stipulated ratio of 50% owing to closure / assignment of all factoring accounts. Pursuant
to the monetization of all factoring accounts, the percentage of factoring income to total
income is nil as on June 30, 2024, which is at variance with the stipulated ratio of 50%.

The Board of Directors of your Company accorded in-principle approval for surrender of your
Company’s Certificate of Registration (CoR) as an NBFC-Factor upon monetization of its
financial assets. The monetization of the last 5 financial assets of your company crystalized
only during FY 2024-25. Further action in respect of surrender of the CoR will be taken in
consultation with the promoters. In this regard, it is submitted that IFCI Factors Limited is a
Government of India Company and there are specific guidelines for closure of Government
Companies, which have not been invoked for your company. As on date the CoR has not been
surrendered.

Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees to report their
genuine concerns to the appropriate authorities for any instances of unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and
provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. The policy
permits all the Directors and employees to report their concerns directly to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee of the Company. During the year under review, no instance of protected
disclosure has been made to the designated authority and no employee was denied access to
the Audit Committee. The details of the Whistle Blower Policy/Vigilance Policy are available on
the website of your Company.

Subsidiaries/ Joint Venture/ Associate
Your Company does not have any subsidiary/ joint venture/ associate company.
Rating for Term Borrowings

During FY 2023-24, your Company redeemed its entire outstanding Non-Convertible
Debenture (NCDs). Your company has no borrowings from bond holders or banks as on March
31, 2024.

Statutory Auditors & Auditors’ Report
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Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CRAG) vide their letter dated September 20, 2023,
and subsequently revised letter dated October 27, 2023 appointed M/s. Raghu Nath Rai & Co.
(FRN:000451N), Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors for the FY 2023-24.

Corporate Governance

The report on Corporate Governance is appended herewith and forms part of the Annual
Report.

Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption

Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the other particulars relating to
conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption stipulated in the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

During the year under review, there was no expenditure in foreign exchange and there was
no foreign exchange fluctuation Income during the financial year 2023-24.

Cost Records

The maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013, was not applicable to the Company.

Application made or proceedings pending under IBC, 2016

There is no application made or any proceeding pending against the Company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

Disclosure of significant or material orders passed by regulators or Court
impacting the going concern status of the Company

There has been no order passed by any Regulator or Court impacting the going concern status
of the Company and Company’s operations.

Secretarial Standards
The Company is compliant with applicable Secretarial Standards.
Comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The comments of Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG) are placed at Annexure III
along with the management responses.
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Annexure-I

Form AOC-2

[pursuant to section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014]

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. — Not Applicable

SI. No. Particulars Details

i Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

ii. Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction
iii. Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

iv. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value, if any

V. Justification for entering into such contracts or
arrangements or transactions’

Vi. Date of approval by the Board

Vii. Amount paid as advances, if any

viii. Date on which the special resolution was passed in
General meeting as required under first proviso to
section 188

Not Applicable

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

Sl. Details
No.
i Name (s) of the related party

& nature of relationship

Particulars

IFCI Limited

ii. Nature of contracts /| Salaries reimbursement of employees deputed,
arrangements/ transaction Rent and Maintenance, Interest Paid,
Managerial Remuneration,  Miscellaneous
Expenses.
iii. Duration of the contracts/ | N.A.
arrangements/ transaction
iv. Salient terms of the | Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
contracts or arrangements | Rent & Maintenance 81,48,000.00
or transaction including the | Miscellaneous expenses 11,72,000.00
value, if any Salary Reimbursement 1,17,07,000.00
of employee deputed
Interest Paid 87,23,000
Loan Drawn / Repaid to 19,00,00,000
IFCI Limited
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V. Date of approval by the | Omnibus approval date
Board May 22, 2023
Vi. Amount paid as advances, if | N.A
any
Sl. Particulars Details
No.
i Name (s) of the related party & | IFCI Venture Capital Fund Limited
nature of relationship
ii. Nature of contracts /| Salaries reimbursement of employees
arrangements/ transaction deputed.
iii. Duration of the contracts/ | N.A.
arrangements/ transaction
iv. Salient terms of the contracts | Salaries reimbursement of employees
or arrangements or transaction | deputed — Rs.29.40 lakh
including the value, if any
V. Date of approval by the Board | Omnibus approval date
May 22, 2023
Vi. Amount paid as advances, if | N.A
any
Sl. Particulars Details
No.
i Name (s) of the related party & | StockHolding DMS Limited
nature of relationship
ii. Nature  of contracts /| Payments towards storage
arrangements/ transaction
iii. Duration of the contracts/ | N.A.
arrangements/ transaction
iv. Salient terms of the contracts | Payments towards storage — Rs.1.55 lakh
or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any
V. Date of approval by the Board | Omnibus approval date
May 22, 2023
Vi. Amount paid as advances, if | N.A
any
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Sl.
No.

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party &
nature of relationship

Smit Kumar (Company Secretary)
Manish Jain (CFO up to September 2023)

Nature of contracts /
arrangements/ transaction

Compensation of Key Managerial Person

Duration of the contracts/
arrangements/ transaction

N.A.

Salient terms of the contracts
or arrangements or transaction
including the value, if any

Short term employee benefit (Manish Jain
CFO upto September 2023 — Rs.1.55 lakh)
Short term contractual benefits (Smit Kumar,
Company Secretary -- Rs.5.40 lakh)

Date of approval by the Board

Omnibus approval date
May 22, 2023

Vi.

Amount paid as advances, if
any

N.A

Date :

Place : New Delhi

Address : 7th Floor, IFCI Tower
61, Nehru Place,
New Delhi 110019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sachikanata Mishra
Nominee Director
DIN : 02755068

Alan Savio Pacheco
Managing Director
DIN: 02171876
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Policy on Related Party Transactions

Introduction

This Policy deals with the Related Party Transactions (RPTs) in terms of RBI
guidelines, Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws prescribing for
formulation of RPT Policy.

Definitions

“Associate Company”, in relation to another company, means a company in which
that other company has significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary company
of the company having such influence and includes a joint Venture company.

Explanation- (a) the expression "significant influence" means control of at least
twenty per cent. of total voting power, or control of or participation in business
decisions under an agreement;

(b) the expression "joint venture" means a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement;.

“Arm’s length transaction” means transaction between two related parties that
is conducted as if they were unrelated, so that there is no conflict of interest.

“Audit Committee” or "Committee” means "Audit Committee” constituted by the
Board of Directors of the company, from time to time, under provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and RBI Guidelines.

“Board of Directors” or "Board” means the Board of Directors of IFCI Factors, as
constituted from time to time.

“Company” means IFCI Factors.

“Government Company” means any company in which not less than fifty one
percent of the paid-up share capital is held by the Central Government, or by any
State Government or Governments, or partly by the Central Government and partly
by one or more State Governments, and includes a company which is subsidiary
company of such a Government Company .

“Independent Director” means a director of the Company, as appointed in terms
of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013.

“Key Managerial Personnel” in relation to a company, means-
() Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

21



%
' Fclﬁn\?.\:‘)ks

[FCI Factors Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

(i) Company Secretary;

(i) Whole-time Director;

(iv)  Chief Financial Officer; and

) Such other officer of the Company as may be prescribed by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs (MCA) from time to time.

(vi) "Such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is
in whole-time employment, designated as key managerial personnel by
the Board”

“Policy” means Policy on Related Party Transactions

(A) “"Related Party” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder
i. adirector or his relative;
ii. a key managerial personnel or his relative;

ii. a firm, in which director, manager or his relative is a partner;

iv. a private company in which a director or manager or his relative is a member
or director;

v. a public company in which a director or manager is a director and holds
along with his relatives, more than 2% of its paid-up share capital;

vi. any body corporate whose Board of Directors, managing director or manager
is accustomed to act in accordance with the advice, directions or instructions

of a director or manager;

vii. any person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director manager is
accustomed to act:

Provided that nothing in sub-clauses (vi) and (vii) shall apply to the advice, directions
or instructions given in a professional capacity.

viii.any body corporate which is:
(@) a holding, subsidiary or an associate company of such company; or
(b) a subsidiary of a holding company to which it is also a subsidiary;

(c) aninvesting company or the venturer of the company.
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Explanation.—For the purpose of this clause, “the investing company or
the venturer of a company” means a body corporate whose investment in
the company would result in the company becoming an associate
company of the body corporate.

ix. A director (other than Independent Director) or key managerial personnel of
the holding company or his relative with reference to a company, shall be
deemed to be a related party]

(B) _As per the provisions of Accounting Standard:

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing
its financial statements (in this Standard referred to as the ‘reporting entity’).
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a
reporting entity if that person:
(i) has control or joint control of the reporting entity;
(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the reporting
entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the
reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related
to the reporting entity.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.
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“Relative” with reference to any person, means anyone who is related to another,
if-

(i) They are members of a Hindu Undivided Family;

(ii) They are husband and wife; or

(iii) One person is related to the other in such manner as may be prescribed

List of relatives as per Rule 4 of Companies (Specification of Definition Details) Rules,
2014

A person shall be deemed to be relative of another, if he or she is related to another
in the following manner, namely:-

1. Father including ‘Step-Father’

2. Mother including ‘Step-Mother’

3. Son including ‘Step-Son’, Son's wife.

4. Daughter including ‘Daughter’s husband”

5. Brother including ‘Step-Brother’

6. Sister including ‘Step-Sister’
“Related Party Transactions” A Related Party Transaction is transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the Company and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
“Control” as per Companies Act 2013 & Rules made thereunder and Accounting Standard:
(A) With reference to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013

Control shall include the right to appoint majority of the Directors or to control the
management or policy decisions exercisable by a person or persons acting individually or in
concert, directly or indirectly, including by virtue of their shareholding or management rights
or shareholders’ agreement or voting agreements or in any other manner.

(B) With reference to the provisions of Accounting Standard

“Joint Ventures” — A contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control.
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Dealing with Related Party Transactions

A. Approvals

I. Approval by Audit Committee

All Related Party Transactions (including any subsequent modifications
thereof) shall require approval of the Audit Committee of Directors.
However, the Audit Committee of Directors may grant omnibus approval
for the RPTs proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to the
following conditions:

i) The Audit Committee shall, after obtaining approval of the Board of
Directors, specify the criteria for making the omnibus approval.

i) The Audit Committee shall consider the following factors while
specifying the criteria for making omnibus approval, namely: - (a)
repetitiveness of the transactions (in past or in future); (b) justification for
the need of omnibus approval.

a.  The Audit Committee may grant the omnibus approval in line with the
policy on Related Party Transactions of the Company.

b.  The Audit Committee shall satisfy itself the need for such omnibus
approval and that such approval is in the interest of Company.

c.  Such omnibus approval shall specify:

i. The name(s) of the Related Party, nature of transaction,
period of transaction, maximum amount of transaction that
can be entered into.

ii. The indicative base price/current contracted price and the
formula for variation in the price if any, and

iii. Such other conditions as Audit Committee may deem fit.

d. Audit Committee shall review, on a quarterly basis, the details of RPTs
entered into by the Company pursuant to each of the omnibus approval
given.

e.  Such omnibus approvals shall be valid for a period not exceeding one
year and shall require fresh approvals after the expiry of one year.
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f.  Where the need for RPT cannot be foreseen and aforesaid details are
not available, audit committee may make omnibus approval for such
transactions subject to their value not exceeding rupees one crore per
transaction.

In the event of inadvertent omission to seek the approval of the Related
Party Transaction in accordance with the Policy, the matter shall be
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Provided further that in case of transaction, other than transactions
referred to in section 188, and where Audit Committee does not approve
the transaction, it shall make its recommendations to the Board

II. Approval by Board of Directors

Except with the consent of the Board of Directors given by a resolution at
a meeting of the board, the Company shall not enter into any contract or
arrangement with a related party with respect to :

i Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials;

ii. Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

iii. Leasing of property of any kind;

iv. Availing or rendering of any services;

V. Appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods,
materials, services or property;

Vi. Such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit in
the company, its subsidiary company or associate company; and
Related Party Transactions.

Explanation-

the expression “office or place of profit” means any office or place-

Where such office or place of profit is held by a director, if the director
holding it receives from the Company anything by way of remuneration
over and above the remuneration to which he is entitled as director, by way
of salary, fee, commission, perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or
otherwise;

Where such office or place is held by an individual other than a director or
by any firm, private company or other body corporate, if the individual,
firm, private company or body corporate holding it receives from the
Company anything by way of remuneration, salary, fee, commission,
perquisites, any rent-free accommodation, or otherwise;
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Vii. Underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives
thereof, of the company:

Provided that nothing of the above shall apply to any transactions entered

into by the Company in its ordinary course of business other than the

transactions which are not on an arm’s length basis.

(Ordinary Course of Business shall include those business which forms part
of the Main Object of the Memorandum of Association of the Company)

III. Approval by Shareholders

1. All the transactions which are in excess of the limits specified in Section
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and which are not in the ordinary
course of business & arm’s length basis shall require approval of
shareholders by way of Resolution.

However, transactions between two Government Companies are
exempted from the aforesaid shareholders approval required under
point no.1 above.

2. No Member of the Company shall vote on such Resolution to approve
any contract or arrangement which may be entered into by the
Company, if such member is a related party. The Related Party here
refers to such Party as may be Related Party in the context of the
contract or arrangement for which the approval is required.

However, the following are exempted from compliance of point no.2
above :

() Transactions between two Government Companies ; and

(i) Transactions between a holding company and its wholly owned

(iii)  subsidiary company whose accounts are consolidated with such
holding company and placed before the shareholders at the
general meeting for approval.

Provided that nothing contained in above clause shall apply to a company in which ninety
per cent. or more members, in number, are relatives of promoters or are related parties
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Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions

Identification of Potential Related Party Transactions

Each director and Key Managerial Personnel shall be responsible for

giving notice to the Company about any potential RPTs, he/she may be
interested.

Pre-requisites for entering into Potential Related Party Transactions

A.

Audit Committee / Board Level Pre-requisites

The Company shall enter into any contract or arrangement with a related
party subject to the following conditions, namely:-

The agenda of the Board/ Audit Committee Meeting, as the case may be,
at which the resolution is proposed to be moved shall disclose-

i)

Vi)

vii)

The name of the related party and nature of relationship;

The nature, duration of the contract and particulars of the contract
or arrangement;

The material terms of the contract or arrangement including the
value, if any;

Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if
any;

The manner of determining the pricing and commercial terms, both
included as part of contract and not considered as part of the
contract;

Whether all factors relevant to the contract have been considered,
if not, the details of factors not considered with the rationale for not
considering those factors; and

And other information relevant or important for the Board to take a
decision on the proposed transaction.

Where any director is interested in any contract or arrangement with a
related party, such director shall not be present at the meeting during
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discussions on the subject matter of the resolution relating to such contract
or arrangement.

B. Shareholders’ Level Pre-requisites

For the approval of shareholders, a notice calling the General Meeting will
be sent along with the explanatory statement to the Shareholders.

The Explanatory Statement to be annexed to the notice of a General
Meeting convened for approval of the RPTs shall contain the following
particulars, namely:-

Name of the Related party;

Name of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, if any;
Nature of relationship;

Nature, material terms, monetary value and particulars of the contract or
arrangement;

Any other information relevant or important for the members to take a
decision on the proposed resolution;

Transactions not previously approved

In the event the Company becomes aware of an RPT that has not been approved or ratified
under this Policy, the transaction shall be placed as promptly as practicable before the Audit
Committee or Board or the Shareholders as may be required in accordance with this Policy for
review and ratification.

The Audit Committee or the Board shall consider all relevant facts and circumstances regarding
such transaction and shall evaluate all options available to the Company, including but not
limited to ratification, revision, or termination of such transaction, and the Company shall take
such action as the Audit Committee / the Board deems appropriate under the circumstances.

Disclosure Requirements

A. Disclosure by Board of Directors

Every Director shall at the first Meeting of the Board in which he participates
as a Director and thereafter at the first Meeting of the Board in every
Financial Year or wherever there is any change in the disclosures already
made, then at the first Board Meeting held after such change, disclose his
concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, firm,
or other association of individuals which shall include the shareholding.

29



%
' Fclﬁn\?.\:‘)ks

[FCI Factors Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

B. Disclosure on Website

The Company shall disclose the policy on Related Party Transactions on its
website and a web-link shall be provided in the Annual Report.

C. Disclosure in Board’s Report

Every contract or arrangement entered into by the Company under Section
188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 requiring Board’s and Company’s
subsequent approval by way of Resolution shall be referred to in the Board’s
Report to the shareholders along with the justification for entering into such
contract or arrangement.

Non-approval or_ Related Pa Transactions/Violation _of
Provision related to Related Party Transactions

i Where any contract or arrangement is entered into by a director or
any other employee, without obtaining the consent of the Board or approval
by a resolution in the general meeting under sub-section (1) and if it is not
ratified by the Board or, as the case may be, by the shareholders at a
meeting within three months from the date on which such contract or
arrangement was entered into, such contract or arrangement shall be
voidable at the option of the Board or, as the case may be, of the
shareholders and if the contract or arrangement is with a related party to
any director, or is authorised by any other director, the directors concerned
shall indemnify the company against any loss incurred by it.

ii.  Without prejudice to anything in the above para, it shall be open to
the Company to proceed against a director or a KMP any other employee
who had entered into such contract or arrangement in contravention of the
provisions of this section for recovery of any loss sustained by it as a result
of such contract or arrangement.
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ANNEXURE-11

CS Neha Jain
Address : 4/255, ChiranfivVihar, Ghaziabad-201002
—— Phn0o-+919971665809 E.mailid - nehiajainpes@gmail. com

SECERETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
OR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment ang Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Ta,

The Members,
M/s. IFCI FACTORS LimitTep
CIN: U74899DL 1995601074640

Regd. Ofl?ce: 7™ Floor, IFC] Tower, 61, Nehru Place,
New Delhj South Delhj - | 10019

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by the M/s. IFCI FACTORS LIMITED. Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducls/stalutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

On the basis of the above and on our verification of documents, papers, minute books, form and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the company its officers and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we
hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31% March, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the company has proper board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent. in
the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropﬁate to obt{lin
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure lhat.correct facts are rcﬂcct_ed in seCfetar!;?l
records. We believe that the processes f}nd practices, we followed prowd:: n' reasonfath:
basis for our opinion. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness o

financial records and Books of the Company.

b)
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c) }\’hcrever required, we have obtained the Management representat;
cnmphancgs of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete, T o St the
pf'lhc Provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, l‘cguial
is the responsibility of management.

_hc Compliance
10ns, standardg

books, papers. minute books, form and returns filed and other record
pany for the financial year ended on 31% March 2024 according 1o thi

The COmp.af\ies Act 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder to the extent applicable:
The Sccunf:cs Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA”) and the rules made xhcreunde.»s
The Peposntories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; :
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder

ign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External

Commercial Borrowings; /Not applicable for this F.Y]

5 The following Regulati

ons and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act™)

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011: [Not applicable for this F.Y]

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992; [Not applicable for this F.Y]

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Ve such event during audit period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999: (No such event during audit
period)

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an lssue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client to the extent of securities issued:;

g The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009; /Not applicable for this F.Y]
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,

1998; and [Not applicable for this F.Y]
i) Other laws informed by the management of the Company as applicable to the

Company . . - . - -
i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and Disclosure

Requirement) Regulation, 2015

The management has identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to the

Company:
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Z
. §wlcwrial Standards with regard to Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and S
(.xcncral Meetings (S§S-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
® The Reserve Bank Act, 1934
* Master Directions Non-Banking Financial Company - Systematically -
Important Non Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016- ps
updated upto August 29, 2023%).

Master Direction — Reserve Bank of India (Non-Banking Financial Company Scale

Based Regulation) Directions, 2023
Debt listing agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE,

Having fcgard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on the basis of
::}»‘r«.szuauon and Reports made by Compliance Auditors of the Company, we further report that
e , /Ao . O i % i

Company has adequate system 1o ensure the compliance of the other applicable laws
specifically to the Company.
Duri i evi ied wi isi

ng fhc perno.d under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors except Independent Directors. The changes

in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were generally sent at least seven days in advance, and a system
exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

« All the decisions in the Board and committee meetings are carried out by the majority as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committee of the

Board as case may be
We further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate
systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the company
to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
I. The Company was not in compliance with the provisions of section 149 of the Companies
Act. 2013 read with Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Dl.reC(Ql'S)
: f requisite number of Independent Directors,

Rules, 2014, in respect of the appointment 0 : 1y

i i irec ] " the Company. The Company 1S @
no independent director on the Board of 1 ¥

e anies Act, 2013 and a prior approval from the

Government Company in terms of Comp _ ‘ i
Ministry of Finance is required 10 appoint any Independent Director on the Board of the
Company, which is pending.

e

Ny S— 0/
\\“')0.‘11; calN A
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2

-

The composition, chairmanship and quorum of mee
Nomin

. tings of
ation & Remuneration Commitiee, Risk Manuage

Audit (‘nmm]“cc &
of Stakeholders Rel

ment Committee
ationship Committee were not in compli

and COMposition
of the Companies Act, 2013

ance with section {77 & 178
We further report that

having a major bearing

during the audit period there were no s
regulations, stand

on Company's alfairs in pursuance of the

pecific events /actions
ards et

above referred laws, rules
Date: 24.06.2024
2 For Neha Jai
Place: Ghazis retar
e: Ghaziabad Company Secretaries

Peer Review. A%T6/223

374 '?\owr"
CS Neha Jain
M. No.: ACS 30822
C P No.: 14344
UDIN: AD30822F000611204

Notes:

1. This report is made on the basis of the secretarial records produced by the Company. Moreover,
the records are properly maintained and are in order.

2. This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A" and forms
an integral part of this reporl.
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“93
CS Neha Jain -

Address : 4/255, ChiranjivVifiar, Ghaziabad-201002 >

X k]

B P no-+919971 665809 E.mail ir{t - rrnﬁfvl_ifrjuinpq@g_mn_!'Kmm '

\

To.

\
The Members, \

M/s. IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN: U74899DL 1995GO1074649

Regd. Office: 7" Floor, IFCI Tower, 61. Nehru Place,
New Delhi South Delhi - 110019

Our secretarial audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

I. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected basis for our

%)

opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of

accounts of the company.
Wherever required, we have obtained the management representation about the compliance

of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliances of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards are the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited

to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The secretarial audit reports are neither an assurance as to future viability of the company
nor of the efficacy of effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs

of the company.

For Neha Jain

Company Secretaries
4876/2023

Date: 24.06.2024

Place: Ghaziabad :
Peer Review-

M. No.: ACS 30822
C P No.: 14344

UDIN A030822F000611204
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IFCI FACTORS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2024

The preparation of financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the year ended 31
March 2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory
Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the
Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of the
Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 26 April 2024,

I. on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited for the year ended 31
March 2024 under Section 143(6) (a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and company personnel and a selective

examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight the following significant
matters under Section 143(6) (b) of the Act which have come to my attention and which in my
view arc necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial statements and the

related audit report:

A Comment on Profitability

A.1  Financial Assets = ¥ 1,899.37 Lakh
Investment (Note No. 4) = ¥934.43 Lakh
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) - X (173.29) Lakh
As per Significant Accounting Policies No.6(b)(1). a financial asset measured at Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) are subsequently measured at

fair value and changes therein are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

I'he above Investment includes T 6.71 crore being the value of 67150 Security Receipts
(SRs) of T 1,000 each fully paid up issued by Asset Reconstruction Company (ARC)
namely Raytheon Assets Reconstruction Pvt. Ltd. (RARE). The above SRs were issued

Page | 1
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A2

by RARE in lieu of stressed loan of Core Education & Technologies Limited (CETL)
assigned to it by IFCI Factors Limited on 30™ March 2017. As intimated by RARE
(January 2024), Net Asset Value (NAV) of the above SRs as on 31" December 2023

was ¥ 6.71 crore.

As per Board Agenda (November 2023) of 1FCI Factors Limited, RARE ARC has
submitted that, post 5/8 years. it may have to make provision against outstanding SRs
as per RBI guidelines and therefore. in the interest of majority SR holders, it is
exploring acquisition/ purchase of SRs at a mutually agreeable price. Accordingly.
RARE ARC proposed to buy outstanding SRs of IFCI Factors Limited for a

consideration of T 4.43 crore (i.c., ~66% of the face value of the SRs 2 6.71 crore).

Therefore. considering 2 6.71 crore as fair value of SRs instead of 2 4.43 crore resulted
in overstatement of Investment and understatement of Other Comprehensive Income

(negative balance) by 2 2.28 crore (i.c.. 2 6.71 crore ~ 2 4.43 crore) each.

Profit/ (Loss) for the period after tax - ¥ (8,793.91) Lakh

Impairment Loss Allowance — 2 (465) Lakh

Loans (Note 3) -3 907.09 Lakh

As per RBI Master Directions of September 2016, company is required to create 100
percent provision to the extent to which the advance is not covered by the realisable
value of security and 50 percent provision for the secured part of the doubtful loan

lying for more than three vears.

IFCI Factors Limited sanctioned (October 2015) a short-term loan of 2 14.50 crore to
Pan India Infra Projects Private Limited (PIIPPL) secured by way of pari passu first
charge on Non-Agriculture — Land admeasuring 195.93 acres at Unan - Village.
Bhayader (West). Taluka & District Thane, Maharashtra, owned by Essel Indra
Projects Limited (EIPL ~ 3rd party security) along with other lenders. Loan account
was declared NPA in June 2019 and outstanding amount as on 31 March 2024 was 2
6.58 crore. Company has made provision of ¥ 3.30 crore (i.e.. T 6.6 crore * 50%)

against the said loan in its books of accounts.

PIIPL was admitted to NCLT (July 2020) and was ordered to be liquidated (October
2023). As per IFCI Factors Limited Board Agenda (February 2024). likelihood of

receiving any proceeds from liquidation process is remote, as IFCI Factors Limited is

Page | 2
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an unsecured creditor of PIIPPL. It was further mentioned that realizable value of the
mortgaged property is T 363.68 crore. of which pro rata share of 1FCI Factors Limited
was 2 7.06 crore (1.94%). With further discount of 40%., realisable value was estimated
at T 4.23 crore. which was also considered as reserve price in the event IFCI Factors
Limited decides to proceed with sale/ assignment of said account. Accordingly.
company was required to make provision of 2 4.45 crore! (i.e.. 2 2.35 crore plus 2 2.1

crore). as per RBI Directions.

This has resulted in understatement of impairment loss allowance and understatement
of loss for the year by  1.15 crore (i.¢.. T 4.45 crore minus T 3.30 crore) each.
Comment on Disclosure and Notes to Accounts

Significant Accounting policies
Notes to financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

As per clause 25 of Ind. AS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements). “When preparing
financial statements. management shall make an assessment of an entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. An entity shall prepare financial statements on a going
concern basis unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease
trading, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. When management is aware, in
making its assessment, of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, entity
shall disclose those uncertainties. When an entity does not prepare financial statements
on a going concern basis. it shall disclose that fact, together with the basis on which it

prepared financial statements and reason why entity is not regarded as a going concern.”

Audit observed that during the financial year 2023-24, [FCI Factors Ltd. out of its total
62 Loan/Factoring/Investments Accounts. has assigned its 57 (NPA) accounts to
Securitisation Company/Reconstruction Company for a total consideration of ¥ 13.21]
crore which has resulted in substantial reduction in the operations of 1FCI Factors Ltd.
Further. it was also observed that Board of Directors of 1FCI Factors Lid, in its 4"
meeting held on 7" November 2023, accorded its in-principle approval for surrender of
NBFC License of IFCI Factors Limited after monetizing its remaining financial assets /
security receipts OR selling/ assigning/ transferring the said financial assets to the

Holding Company. as applicable. subject to the approval of the Holding Company,

! {insecured Loan 2 2 35 crore (2 6 5% crore — 2 423 Grore bemng realisable value) & 50 s of 2 423 crore = 2 2 | crore

Page | 3
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B.2

IFCI Limited. Accordingly. IFCl Factors Limited requested (March 2024) 1FCI
Limited to assess the remaining 5 financial assets and make an offer to IFCI Factors
Limited for purchase of the said financial assets. Moreover, no fresh lending is being
done and the company has not sanctioned/ disbursed any fresh loan during current
financial year. The above events or conditions has created a significant doubt upon the

ability of IFCI Factors Limited to continue as a going concern.

It was, however. observed that though the management was aware of the above
developments/ events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's
ability to continue as a going concern, during the financial year 2023-24 itself. yet the
company has not adequately disclosed these material uncertainties (i.e.. surrender of
NBFC license, discontinuation of operations, sale of remaining assets, et¢) in its

Financial Statements for the financial vear 2023-24

T'his has resulted in non-compliance to Clause 25 of Ind. AS 1 (Presentation of
Financial Statements) and the Financial Statement alongwith Notes to Financial

Statement for the financial year 2023-24 is deficient to that extent.

Notes to Accounts No.51: Stage 3 income has not been recognised in the accounts

As per Para 54.1 and 5.4.2 of Ind. AS 109, the Company shall recognize income on
credit impaired financial assets. Further, clarification in this regard was also obtained
by IFCI Ventures Capital Funds Limited (Group Company) from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and it was opined that the interest should be
accrued in respect of credit-impaired assets in line with the principles of Ind. AS 109

and no departures from the principles of Ind. AS 109 should be made in this regard.

Company’s Material Accounting Policy no. 6 (a)(i) also states that for financial assets
that have become credit impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is

calculated by applying effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset.

Audit observed that the company. vide its Notes to Accounts no. 51, has disclosed that

Stage 3 income has not been recognized in the books of Accounts.

Thus, Notes to Accounts no.51 is in contravention with the Material Accounting Policy
of the company. provisions of Ind. AS 109 and opinion of ICAL Further. in absence of
the information/ calculation regarding Stage 3 income. audit is unable to quantify the
impact of the same on the financial statement of the company for the year 2023-24.

Page | 4
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D
D.1

Contingent Liability

Para 86 of Ind. AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).
stipulates that. "unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote an entity
shall disclose a brief description of the nature of the contingent liability and an
estimation of its financial effect, where practicable. for each class of contingent

liability at the end of the reporting period”,

Audit observed that IFCI Factors Limited received a demand of ? 99,62 lakh from the
Department of Trade & Taxes due to not declaring correct tax liability while filing
annual returns for the Financial Year 2018-19. IFCI Factors Limited has filed an appeal
before the Additional Commissioner, Appeals -1. Delhi — North in this regard and the

matter was sub-judice as on 31 March 2024,

Hence. the amount of 2 99.62 lakh should have been shown as Contingent liability in

the books of accounts.

Non-disclosing the above under Contingent liability has resulted in understatement of

contingent liability by 2 99.62 lakh.

Comment on Independent Auditors’ Report
Emphasis of Matter
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

Reference is invited to Emphasis of Matters on “Material Uncertainty Related to Going

Concern™ as included in Independent Auditors® Report, wherein following is stated:

"We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial statements. During the quarter ended 30
September 2023, the company has assigned 57 NPA loan accounts, out of its 62 loan/
investment accounts for ¥ 1,321 lakh (Refer Note. 40-xxii). In view of the same there has
heen substantial reduction in the operations. At present, no fresh lending is being done
Therefore, the company'’s ability to continue as a going concern would depend upon its
future action plan. Further, as informed by the management, the company has not
sanctioned’ disbursed any fresh loan during current financial year. Attention is also

invited to matter reported at 'Clause xix' of Annexure-A in this audit report. ™

During FY 2023-24, out of total 62 Loan/ Factoring/ Investments Accounts. IFCI

Factors Limited has assigned 57 NPA accounts to Securitisation Company/

Page | 5
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Reconstruction Company for a total consideration of ¥ 13.21 crore. Further. the Board of
Directors of 1FCI Factors Limited has accorded (November 2023) in-principle approval
for surrender of NBFC License after monetizing its remaining financial assets/ security
receipts or selling/ assigning/ transferring them to the Holding Company (IFCI Limited).
Accordingly, IFCI Factors Limited requested (12" March 2024) IFCI Limited (the
Holding Company) to assess the remaining 5 financial assets and make an offer to IFCI
Factors Limited for their purchase. Moreover, no fresh lending is being done and the

company has not sanctioned’ disbursed any fresh loan during current financial year.

As per Para 9 read with Para A7 of SA 706 (Revised) on ‘Emphasis of Matter and Other
Matter Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report’, an Emphasis of Matter
paragraph is not a substitute for (¢) Reporting under SA 570 (Revised) when a material
uncertainty exists relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on an

entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

As per Para 23 of SA 570 (Revised) on *Going Concern’, if adequate disclosure about
material uncertainty is not made in the financial statement. the auditor shall express a
qualified opinion or adverse opinion, as appropriate. in accordance with SA 705
(Revised) on *Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report, and
state that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s
ability to continue as a going concern and that the financial statements do not adequately

disclose this matter.

IFCI Factors Limited did not disclose above aspect of surrendering its NBFC license as
well as decision of selling out all its NPA accounts. Further, disclosure in Notes to
Accounts No.53 is inadequate. as it only provides book value and sale consideration

without revealing the substantial reduction in operations.

In view of above. auditor's failure to express a qualified or adverse opinion, as required
by SA 570 (Revised) and SA 705 (Revised), constitutes a significant non-compliance
with the provisions specified in Para 23 of SA 570 (Revised) and SA 705 (Revised).
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors® Report

Para 3 (iii) (¢) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO). 2020 requires statutory
auditors 1o report that “In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, whether
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
whether the repayments or receipts are regular.”

Page | 6
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Further, Para 3 (iii) (d) of CARO 2020 requires statutory auditors to report that “if the
amount is overdue, state the total amount overdue for more than 90 days. and whether

reasonable steps have been taken by company for recovery of the principal and interest.”

Audit observed that the Independent Auditor vide Para (iii) (¢) of Annexure A of his
report has disclosed that in respect of any loans or advances in the nature of loans, the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts are regular w.r.t Standard Loan Assets, However, the Auditor
has not given said information for all loans and advances, including substandard,

doubtful, and NPA loans of the company.

Further. as per Para (iii) (d) of Annexure A to Independent Auditors™ Report it has been
disclosed that there is no amount more than 90 days. w.r.t standard loan assets. as on
balance sheet date. Here also, the Independent Auditors have only given the disclosure

regarding standard loans and not regarding doubtful. and NPA loans of the company.

Hence. the Independent Auditors’ Report is deficient to the above extent.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Whasdo

(S. Ahlladini Panda)
Director Genel;akrf%ndit

(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Place: New Delhi
Date: 1 4 AR 2004

™ 9 1

43



%
' Fclﬁn\?.\:‘)ks

IFCI Factors Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

CAG Comments

Management Response

Comment on Profitability

Financial Assets — %1,899.37 Lakh
Investment (Note No. 4) — %934.43 Lakh

Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) —
%(173.29) Lakh

As per Significant Accounting Policies No.6
(b) (I), a financial asset measured at Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVTOCI) are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes therein
are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI). The above Investment
includes 6.71 crore being the value of 67150
Security Receipts (SRs) of 1,000 each fully
paid up issued by Asset Reconstruction
Company (ARC) namely Raytheon Assets
Reconstruction Pvt. Ltd. (RARE). The above
SRs were issued by RARE in lieu of stressed
loan of Core Education & Technologies
Limited (CETL) assigned to it by IFCI Factors
Limited on 30th March 2017. As intimated by
RARE (January 2024), Net Asset Value (NAV)
of the above SRs as on 31' December 2023
was 6.71 crore.

As per Board Agenda (November 2023) of
IFCI Factors Limited, RARE ARC has
submitted that, post 5/8 years, it may have
to make provision against outstanding SRs
as per RBI guidelines and therefore, in the
interest of majority SR holders, it is exploring
acquisition/ purchase of SRs at a mutually
agreeable price. Accordingly, RARE ARC
proposed to buy outstanding SRs of IFCI
Factors Limited for a consideration of 34.43
crore (i.e., — 66% of the face value of the
SRs %6.71 crore).

Therefore, considering %6.71 crore as fair
value of SRs instead of %4.43 crore resulted
in overstatement of Investment and
understatement of Other Comprehensive
Income (negative balance) by 2.28 crore
(i.e., X6.71 crore — X4.43 crore) each.

As per para 7 of Reserve Bank of
India (Transfer of Loan Exposures)
Directions, 2021, NBFCs which are
required to comply with Indian
Accounting Standards (IndAS)
shall continue to be guided by the
Standards and the advisories
issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI Advisories) in case of any
inconsistencies between these
directions and the Standards.

Since, IFL has undertaken fair
valuation as per Ind AS — 109, any
additional provisioning as per RBI
directions is inconsistent with Ind
AS - 109.

A.2

Profit/ (Loss) for the period after tax -
%(8,793.91) Lakh

Impairment Loss Allowance — %(465) Lakh

In the instant case, as on
31/03/2024, the realizable value
of the mortgaged property is
Rs.363.68 crore of which the pro-
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S. No.

CAG Comments

Management Response

Loans (Note 3) — %907.09 Lakh

As per RBI Master Directions of September
2016, company is required to create 100
percent provision to the extent to which the
advance is not covered by the realisable
value of security and 50 percent provision for
the secured part of the doubtful loan lying
for more than three years.

IFCI Factors Limited sanctioned (October
2015) a short-term loan of 14.50 crore to
Pan India Infra Projects Private Limited
(PIIPPL) secured by way of pari passu first
charge on Non-Agriculture — Land
admeasuring 195.93 acres at Uttan - Village,
Bhayader (West), Taluka & District Thane,
Maharashtra, owned by Essel Indra Projects
Limited (EIPL — 3rd party security) along
with other lenders. Loan account was
declared NPA in June 2019 and outstanding
amount as on 31 March 2024 was 6.58 crore.
Company has made provision of 3.30 crore
(i.e., 6.6 crore * 50%) against the said loan
in its books of accounts.

PIIPL was admitted to NCLT (July 2020) and
was ordered to be liquidated (October 2023).
As per IFCI Factors Limited Board Agenda
(February 2024), likelihood of receiving any
proceeds from liquidation process is remote,
as IFCI Factors Limited is an unsecured
creditor of PIIPPL. It was further mentioned
that realizable value of the mortgaged
property is 363.68 crore, of which pro rata
share of IFCI Factors Limited was 7.06 crore
(1.94%). With further discount of 40%,
realisable value was estimated at 4.23 crore,
which was also considered as reserve price
in the event IFCI Factors Limited decides to
proceed with sale/ assignment of said
account. Accordingly, company was required
to make provision of 4.45 crore | (i.e., 2.35
crore plus 2.1 crore), as per RBI Directions.

This has resulted in understatement of
impairment loss allowance and
understatement of loss for the year 1.15
crore (i.e., 4.45 crore minus 3.30 crore)
each.

rata share of IFL was X7.06 crore
as against the outstanding of
Rs.6.6 crore. Accordingly, as on
31/03/2024, the entire
outstanding facility was secured.
Since more than 3 vyears has
elapsed since the account was
classified as doubtful, IFL was
required to make a provision to
the extent of 50% of the secured
portion. Therefore, IFL made a
provision of 50% of the
outstanding — i.e. Rs.3.3 crore

It appears from the observation
alongside that security value has
inadvertently been considered as
Rs.4.23 crore. It is clarified that
the figure of Rs.4.23 crore referred
to in the observation is not the
Realizable Value of the mortgaged
property but the reserve price
worked out as per IFL’s internal
policy for running the process of
assignment / sale of facilities.

For working out the provision, IFL
has considered the Realizable
Value of the security as prescribed
by the RBI Master Directions.
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of Financial Statements), "When preparing
financial statements, management shall
make an assessment of an entity's ability to
continue as a going concern. An entity shall
prepare financial statements on a going
concern basis unless management either
intends to liquidate the entity or to cease
trading, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so. When management is aware, in
making its assessment, of material
uncertainties related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon entity's
ability to continue as a going concern, entity
shall disclose those uncertainties. When an
entity does not prepare financial statements
on a going concern basis, it shall disclose
that fact, together with the basis on which it
prepared financial statements and reason
why entity is not regarded as a going
concern."

Audit observed that during the financial year
2023-24, IFCI Factors Ltd, out of its total 62
Loan/Factoring/Investments Accounts, has
assigned its 57 (NPA) accounts to
Securitisation Company/Reconstruction
Company for a total consideration of 13.21
crore which has resulted in substantial
reduction in the operations of IFCI Factors
Ltd. Further, it was also observed that Board
of Directors of IFCI Factors Ltd, in its 4th
meeting held on 7th November 2023,
accorded its in-principle approval for
surrender of NBFC License of IFCI Factors
Limited after monetizing its remaining
financial assets / security receipts OR selling/
assigning/ transferring the said financial
assets to the Holding Company, as
applicable, subject to the approval of the
Holding Company, IFCI Limited. Accordingly,
IFCI Factors Limited requested (March 2024)
IFCI Limited to assess the remaining 5
financial assets and make an offer to IFCI
Factors Limited for purchase of the said
financial assets. Moreover, no fresh lending
is being done and the company has not
sanctioned/ disbursed any fresh loan during

S. No. | CAG Comments Management Response
B Comments on Disclosures and Notes
to Accounts
B.1 As per clause 25 of Ind. AS 1 (Presentation | As per Ind-AS 1, an entity should

prepare financial statements on a
going concern basis unless the
management intends to liquidate
the entity or to cease trading or
has no realistic alternative but to
do so. In this regard, it is
submitted that IFCI Factors
Limited is a Government of India
company. There are specific
guidelines  for  closure  of
government companies, which
have not been invoked for IFCI
Factors Limited. As regards the in-
principle approval of the Board for
surrender of NBFC License, further
action shall be taken in
consultation with the promoters.
Pending the decision, it would be
premature to determine the ability
of IFCI Factors Limited to continue
as a going concern. As of date
NBFC License has not been
surrendered.

As regards the assignment of 57
NPAs to an Asset Reconstruction
Company during FY 2023-24, the
same has been disclosed in Note
No.53 of the Notes to Accounts. As
regards the sale of the remaining
5 financial assets, the same has
been crystallised only during FY
2024-25.

Details of the sale/ assignment of
the 5 financial assets has been
incorporated in Note no. 53 and
the Annual Report for FY 2023-24.
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S. No.

CAG Comments

Management Response

current financial year. The above events or
conditions has created a significant doubt
upon the ability of IFCI Factors Limited to
continue as a going concern.

It was, however, observed that though the
management was aware of the above
developments/ events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability
to continue as a going concern, during the
financial year 2023-24 itself, yet the
company has not adequately disclosed these
material uncertainties (i.e., surrender of
NBFC license, discontinuation of operations,
sale of remaining assets, etc) in its Financial
Statements for the financial year 2023-24

This has resulted in non-compliance to
Clause 25 of Ind. AS 1 (Presentation of
Financial Statements) and the Financial
Statement along with Notes to Financial
Statement for the financial year 2023-24 is
deficient to that extent

B.2

Notes to Accounts No.51 : Stage 3
income has not been recognized in the
accounts

As per Para 5.4.1 and 5.4.2 of Ind. AS 109
the Company shall recognize income on
credit impaired financial assets. Further,
clarification in this regard was also obtained
by IFCI Ventures Capital Funds Limited
(Group Company) from the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and it
was opined that the interest should be
accrued in respect of credit-impaired assets
in line with the principles of Ind. AS 109 and
no departures from the principles of Ind. AS
109 should be made in this regard.

Company's Material Accounting Policy no. 6
(a)(i) also states that for financial assets that
have become credit impaired subsequent to
initial  recognition, interest income is
calculated by applying effective interest rate
to the amortized cost of the financial asset.

Audit observed that the company, vide its
Notes to Accounts no. 51, has disclosed that
Stage 3 income has not been recognized in
the books of Accounts.

As on 31/03/2024, IFL had only 2
non-performing loan accounts on
its books and IFL was at an
advanced stage of sale /
assignment of the said loans,
where the likelihood of recovery of
interest was uncertain. Therefore,
had IFL recognized Stage 3
income in the said 2 NPA accounts,
the same would have to be written
off. The net impact would be the
same as non-recognition of stage-
3 income.
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Thus, Notes to Accounts no.51 is in
contravention with the Material Accounting
Policy of the company, provisions of Ind. AS
109 and opinion of ICAI. Further, in absence
of the information/ calculation regarding
Stage 3 income, audit is unable to quantify
the impact of the same on the financial
statement of the company for the year 2023-
24.

Contingent Liability

Para 86 of Ind. AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets) stipulates
that, "unless the possibility of any outflow in
settlement is remote an entity shall disclose
a brief description of the nature of the
contingent liability and an estimation of its
financial effect, where practicable, for each
class of contingent liability at the end of the
reporting period".

Audit observed that IFCI Factors Limited
received a demand of 99.62 lakh from the
Department of Trade & Taxes due to not
declaring correct tax liability while filing
annual returns for the Financial Year 2018-
19. IFCI Factors Limited has filed an appeal
before the Additional Commissioner. Appeals
-1. Delhi - North in this regard and the
matter was sub-judice as on 31 March
2024.

Hence the amount of %99.62 lakh should
have been shown as Contingent liability in
the books of accounts.

Non-disclosing the above under Contingent
liability has resulted in understatement of
contingents liability by ¥99.62 lakh.

1)

1)

2)

3)

4)

Regarding the proceedings for
Fy 2018-19, IFL did not
receive any message or email
on the registered
communication address
regarding the show cause
notice dated 05/12/2023 and
therefore IFL was not in a
position to file a reply to the
show cause notice. As regards
the order dated 22/03/2024
directing IFL to pay an amount
of Rs.99.62 lakh, IFL has filed
an appeal before the Ld.
Additional Commissioner
Appeals -1. Delhi — North,
against the order dated
22/03/2024. IFL had prayed to
quash the order dated
22/03/2024 on below grounds:
Non-communication of the
SCN through a valid medium
does not tantamounts to
service of notice, hence order
invalid.

Tax liability disbursed in
succeeding financial year, only
interest liability would arise
which has been paid via DRC-
03.

Provision for reversal of ITC on
account of exempt supply is
different for NBFC from other
regular taxpayers, which was
duly complied by the company
Input tax credit cannot be
denied due to mere procedural
lapse where the beneficiary
has satisfied the sine qua non
for the benefit
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5) Tax should not be demanded
from the notice as the
procedural lapse in filing of
return does not amount to loss
to revenue

6) Declaration of ineligible ITC in
GSTR-2a or otherwise does
not amount to ITC availment.

In view of the above there is no
dispute with respect to question of
law and all liabilities as per GST
returns stands discharged.
Therefore, the demand has not
been considered as contingent
liability.

CAG Comments

Auditors’ Response

Comments on Independent Auditors
Report

Emphasis of Matter

Material
Concern

Uncertainty Related to Going

Reference is invited to Emphasis of Matters
on "Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern" as included in Independent
Auditors' Report. wherein following is stated:

"We draw attention to Note 3 in the Financial

statements. During the quarter ended 30
September 2023, the company has assigned
57 NPA loan accounts, out of its 62 loan /
investment accounts for ¥1,321 lakh (Refer
Note.40-xxii). In view, of the same there has
been substantial reduction in the operations.
At present, no fresh lending is being done.
Therefore, the company'’s ability to continue
as a going concern would depend upon its
future action plan. Further, as informed by
the management, the company has not
sanctioned / disbursed any fresh loan during
current financial year. Attention is also
invited to matter reported at 'Clause xix’ of
Annexure-A in this audit report.”

During FY 2023-24, out of total 62 Loan /
Factoring / Investments Accounts. IFCI

As per Ind-AS 1, an entity should
prepare financial statements on a
going concern basis unless the
management intends to liquidate
the entity or to cease trading or
has no realistic alternative but to
do so. In this regard, it is
submitted that IFCI Factors
Limited is a Government of India
company. There are specific
guidelines  for  closure  of
government companies, Wwhich
have not been invoked for IFCI
Factors Limited. As regards the in-
principle approval of the Board for
surrender of NBFC License, further
action shall be taken in
consultation with the promoters.
Pending the decision it would be
premature to determine the ability
of IFCI Factors Limited to continue
as a going concern. As of date
NBFC License has not been
surrendered.

As regards the assignment of 57
NPAs to an Asset Reconstruction
Company during FY 2023-24, the
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Factors Limited has assigned 57 NPA
accounts to Securitisation Company /
Reconstruction Company a total
consideration %3.21 crore. Further the Board
of Directors of IFCI Factors Limited has
accorded (November 2023) in-principle
approval for surrender of NBFC License after
monetizing its remaining financial assets /
security receipts or selling / assigning
transferring them to the Holding Company
(IFCI Limited). Accordingly. IFCI Factors
Limited requested (12% March 2024) IFCI
Limited (the Holding Company) to assess the
remaining 5 financial assets and make an
offer to IFCI Factors Limited for their
purchase. Moreover, no fresh lending is
being done and the company has not
sanctioned/ disbursed any fresh loan during
current financial year.

As per Para 9 read with Para A7 of SA 706
(Revised) on 'Emphasis of Matter and Other
after Paragraphs in the Independent
Auditor's Report' and Emphasis of Matter
paragraph is not a substitute for (c)
Reporting under SA 570 (Revised) when a
material uncertainty exists relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on an entity's ability to continue as a going
concern.

same has been disclosed in Note
No.53 of the Notes to Accounts. As
regards the sale of the remaining
5 financial assets, the same has
been crystallised only during FY
2024-25.

D.2

Annexure A to the Independent
Auditors’ Report

Para 3 (iii) (c) of Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order (CARO), 2020 requires
statutory auditors to report that "In respect
of loans and advances in the nature of loans,
whether the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and whether the repayments or
receipts are regular."

Further Para 3 (iii) (d) of CARO 2020
requires statutory auditors to report that "if
the amount is overdue, state the total
amount overdue for more than 90 days and
whether reasonable steps have been taken
by company for recovery of the principal and
interest."

The disclosure with respect to NPA
amount is already appearing under
Note 40 (xvii).

The disclosure shall be made in the
next Audit Report.
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Audit observed that the Independent Auditor
vide Para (iii) (c) of Annexure A of his report
has disclosed that in respect of any loans or
advances in the nature of loans. The
schedule of repayments of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated and
the repayments or receipts are regular w.r.t
Standard Loan Assets. However, the Auditor
has not given said information for all loans
and advances, including substandard,
doubtful, and NPA loans of the company.

Further as per Para (iii) (d) of Annexure A to
Independent Auditors' Report it has been
disclosed that there is no amount more than
90 days, w.r.t standard loan assets as on
balance sheet date. Here also, the
Independent Auditors have only given the
disclosure regarding standard loans and not
regarding doubtful and NPA loans of the
company.
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. COMPANY'’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages attainment of better transparency
and accountability in all facets of operations and all its interactions with its stakeholders including
shareholders, employees, bankers and the auditors. The Company constantly endeavours to
achieve standards of Corporate Governance in order to enhance the long term stakeholders’ value
and maintain good Corporate Governance. The Company has well established, transparent and
fair administrative set up to provide for professionalism and accountability.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

Composition, Category and Attendance of the Board of Directors

As on March 31, 2024, the Board of the Company consisted of six Directors, out of whom five
are Non-Executive Directors while one is Executive Director being the Managing Director.

The composition of the Board, number of Board Meetings held, attendance, number of
Directorship and Chairmanship / Membership of Committees in other Companies in respect of

each Director during the FY 2023-24 is furnished below:

SI | Name of Director | Category Attendance Particulars No. of Directorships/ Committee
No Memberships/ Chairmanships
of other Companies
No. of Board Meetings At AGM Other Committee |Committee
during the tenure of held on  |Directorships | Memberships |Chairmans
Director December hips
18, 2023
Held Attended
1. | Mr. Rahul Bhave(a)| Non- 1 1 N/A 4 12 2
Executive
Chairman
2. | Mr. Suresh Kumar | Non- 5 5 Yes 2 2 2
Jain Executive
Director
3. |Mr. Ashok Kumar Non- 5 5 Yes 1 4 2
Motwani Executive
Director
4. |Mr. Sachikanta Non- 5 4 Yes 2 9 4
Mishra (b) Executive
Director
5. | Mr. Alan Savio Managing 5 5 Yes 3 2 1
Pacheco Director
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Ms. Pooja Non- 5 5 Yes 0 0
Mahajan Executive
Director

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING FY 2023-24

Mr. Manoj Mittal(c)| Non- 4 4 N.A - -
Executive
Director

(a) Mr. Rahul Bhave was appointed as Nominee Director and Chairman (Non-executive) w.e.f. December
20, 2023. Further, he ceased to be Nominee Director and Chairman (Non-executive) w.e.f. August 16,
2024 pursuant to withdrawal of nomination by IFCI Limited.

(b) Mr. Sachikanta Mishra was appointed as Chairman (Non-executive) w.e.f. August 16, 2024

(¢) Mr. Manoj Mittal ceased as as Nominee Director and Chairman (Non-executive) w.e.f. December 20,
2023.

Notes:

(i) Number of Meetings represents the Meetings held during the period in which the Director
was member of the Board.

(ii) Number of other Directorship is exclusive of companies under Section 25 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Board met five times during the Financial Year 2023-2024 viz., on May 12, 2023, May 22,
2023, August 09, 2023, November 07, 2023, and February 07, 2024.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of Audit Committee are to examine the Financial Statements and the
auditors’ report thereon, to evaluate internal financial controls and risk management systems,
to review and monitor the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit
process, to approve transactions with related parties, review the functioning of the Whistle
Blower Mechanism, etc.

COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year 2023-24 at regular intervals on
May 22, 2023, August 09, 2023, November 07, 2023, and February 07, 2024. The composition
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of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2024 and attendance of members during the FY 2023-
24 is shown below:

Name/ category Position in Audit | No. of meetings during the tenure of
Committee member
Held Attended

Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain Chairman 4 4
Non- Executive Director

Mr. Ashok Kumar Motwani Member 4 4
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sachikanata Mishra Member 4 3
Non- Executive Director

Ms. Pooja Mahajan Member 4 4

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2023-24
NIL

3. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee are to formulate the
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, to
identify persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior
management etc.

COMPOSITION, MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE OF THE COMMITTEE

During the Financial Year 2023-24, one meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
was held on August 09, 2023. The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee as on March 31, 2024 and attendance of members during the FY 2023-24 is shown
below:

Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the
Committee tenure of member

Held Attended
Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain Chairperson 1 1
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sachikanata Mishra Member 1 -
Non- Executive Director
Ms. Pooja Mahajan Member 1 1
Non- Executive Director

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2023-24
NIL
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Details of remuneration paid to Directors
The details of salary and sitting fees paid to the Directors for the year ended 31 March, 2024
are as under:

SI. Name Salary Perquisite | Profit Sitting Total
No. In lieu Fees (Rs.)
of (Rs.)
Salary

1. | Mr. Manoj Mittal - - - - -
Non-Executive Chairman

2. | Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain - - - 3,78,000/- 3,78,000/-
Non-Executive Director
3. | Mr. Ashok Kumar Motwani - - - 1,80,000/- 1,80,000/-

Non-Executive Director

4. | Mr. Sachikanta Mishra - - - - _
Non-Executive Director

5. | Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco - - - - N
Managing Director

6. | Ms. Pooja Mahajan - - - - -
Non-Executive Director

4. COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of Committee of Directors are to sanction financial assistance by way
of factoring, advance against future receivables, corporate loans, settlement/restructuring of
dues as per the Credit Policy of the Company, to borrow monies, create charge on the assets
and to allot the securities etc.

The Committee of Directors met six times during the Financial Year 2023-24 on April 19, 2023,
April 28, 2023, June 19, 2023, July 25, 2023, November 07, 2023 and January 31, 2024. The
composition of the Committee of Director as on March 31, 2024 and attendance of members
during the FY 2023-24 is shown below:

Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the tenure
Committee of | of member
Directors Held Attended
Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain .
Non-Executive Director Chairman 6 6
Mr. Sachikanta Mishra
Non-Executive Director Member 6 6
Mr. Alaln Sa\{lo Member 6 6
Managing Director
Ms. Pooja Mahajan
Non-Executive Director Member 6 6

DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2023-24
NIL
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4. RISK MANAGEMENT AND ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Committee are
to identify and monitor key risk areas, devise the policy and strategy for integrated risk
management, to critically assess the Company’s business strategies and plans from a risk
perspective, manage risks to which the Company is exposed, including credit, market,
operational and reputational risks and to review the Statement of Short Term Dynamic
Liquidity, Structural Liquidity, Interest Rate Sensitivity etc. The Risk Management & Asset
Liability Management Committee met four times during the Financial Year 2023-24, on May
22, 2023, August 09, 2023, November 07, 2023 and February 07, 2024. The composition of
the Risk Management and Asset Liability Management Committee and attendance of members
during the FY 2023-24 is shown below:

Name/ category Position in No. of meetings during the
Committee tenure of member
Held Attended
Mr. Sachikanata Mishra Chairman 4 3
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Suresh kumar Jain Member 4 4
Non-Executive Director
Mr. Alan Savio Member 4 4
Managing Director
DIRECTORS WHO CEASED TO BE ON THE COMMITTEE DURING FY 2023-24
NIL
5. GENERAL BODY MEETING:
Financial Date & time of AGM Venue of the AGM
Year
2022-23 18" December 2023/ 12:00 | IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New
Noon Delhi-110019, (through VC)
2021-22 21t December 2022/ 12:00 IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New
Noon Delhi-110019, (through VC)
2020-21 15" November 2021/ 3:30 IFCI Tower, 61 Nehru Place, New
P.M, Delhi-110019, (through VC)

Following Special Resolutions were passed at the above AGMs:

AGM Date Particulars of Special Resolutions
18% December 2023 NIL
215t December 2022 NIL
15" November 2021 NIL

56



%
' Fclﬁn\?.\:‘)ks

[FCI Factors Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

6. DISCLOSURES

(i)

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The related party transactions have been disclosed in note no. 31 of the Notes to
Accounts of the Balance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2024.

No penalties were imposed on the Company by any authorities.

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy duly approved by the Board, which has been
circulated to all the employees of the Company and also placed on the website of the
Company viz. www.ifcifactors.com. Further, it is affirmed that no personnel has been
denied access to the Audit Committee.

During the year, no expenses which are of personal nature have been incurred for the
Board of Directors and top management.

The Financial Expenses are 9.17% of the total expenses as against 96.13% for the
last year.

7. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Annual Report and other statutory information are being sent to shareholders.

TRAINING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company furnishes a set of documents to the Directors and informs them about the
important data regarding recent developments about the performance of the Company,
industry scenario & regulatory changes.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Alan Savio Pacheco Sachikanata Mishra
Date : Managing Director Nominee Director
Place : New Delhi DIN: 03497265 DIN : 02755068
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Raghu Nath Rai T Co.

Chartered Accountants
9 Mathura Road, Jangpura ‘B’. New Delhi-110014
Phones / Auto Fax: 91-11-24372181-82 /011 - 41637508

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To,
The Members of IFCI Factors Limited

Report on the Audit of the IND AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of IFCI Factors Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2024, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including statement of Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give a true and fair view, in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31%
March, 2024, and its Joss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis of opinion:

We conducted our audit of these Ind-AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICATI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter:

1. We draw your attention to Note 53 & 54 of Notes to Accounts, where reversal of
Deferred Tax assets of INR 8637.51 lakhs is mentioned. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of these matters.

E mail: admin@rnr.in ; Website: www.rnr.in
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Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 3 in the financial statements. During the quarter ended September 30,
2023, the company has assigned 57 NPA loan accounts out its of 62 loan/ investment accounts for
INR. 1,321 lakhs (Refer Note. 40-xxii). In view of the same there has been substantial reduction in
the operations. At present, no fresh lending is being done. Therefore, the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern would depend upon its future action plan. Further, as informed by the
management, the company has not sanctioned/disbursed any fresh loan during current financial
Year. Attention is also invited to matter reported at 'Clause xix ** of Annexure- A in this audit report.

Other Matter:

The financial results for the quarter ended 30th June, 2023, have been reviewed/audited by the
previous auditor who has expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements based on their
review/audit for the aforesaid periods.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we may read the aforesaid Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take appropriate actions as per the applicable laws and regulations.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companics Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements, that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Board of directors is responsible for assessing
the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting.
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The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate and effective
controls in respect of use of accounting software that entails the requisite features as specified by
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 including an evaluation and assessment of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the company's accounting software in terms of recording and audit trail of
each and every transaction and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled and the audit trail
been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Auditor’s Responsibility for audit of for the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect material
misstatements when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risks of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofthe
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or condition that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in

(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirement regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our
audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, and on the basis of such checks
of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order, to the extent applicable.

We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such checks
of the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, in the “Annexure B” on the directions and sub-
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company at its registered office so far as it appears from our examination of those books,
except some documents/papers have been kept Paschim Vihar.;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended,;

(e) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5
June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions
of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence,
the reporting about any director being disqualified from under sub-section (2) of section
164 is not applicable for the company;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind
AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure C” to this audit report;

(2) As per Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June 2015 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, Section 197 of the Act is not applicable to the
Government Companies. Accordingly, reporting in accordance with requirement of
provisions of section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable on the Company.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigation except those mentioned in Note 26, which
may impact its financial position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which any
provision, is required under any law or Ind AS, for material foreseeable losses.
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iil.

iv.

VI.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds (which are material
either individually or in the aggregate) either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”™), with the understanding, whetherrecorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The company has not received any funds (which are material either individually
or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used such
accounting software (ORACLE) for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit, on test check basis, we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by
the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Raghu Nath Rai & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000451N

Arjun Mehta
(Partner)
M. No.: 097685

Date: 26/04/2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 24097685BKCTAU6378
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory
requirements” section ofour report of even date to the members of [FCI Factors Limited on
the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2024.
(1 (a) e The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant & Equipment, capital
work-in progress, and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

e The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Property, Plant & Equipment has been physically verified by the management
annually, which is a reasonable interval in accordance with the size of the company. No
material discrepancies were reported in the physical verification report.

(c) As informed by the management, Company do not have any immovable properties (other
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are dulyexecuted
in favour of the Company) as a part of property, plant and equipment, and capital work-in
progress. Hence this clause is not applicable on the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
assets) or its Intangible assets during the year.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As the company does not hold any Inventory during the year, this clause is not applicable
on the company.
(b) As informed by the management, The Company has not been sanctioned any working
capital limits from any bank, during the year under consideration. Hence this clause is not
applicable on the company.

(ii) (a) As informed by the management, during the year company has not made any investment,
provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advancesin the nature of loans
(except Loan given to its customers as part of their main business), secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. The company is a
registered Non-BankingFinancial Company (NBFC), the main business of the company is to
give loans, hence this clause is not applicable on the company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no such investments has been made by the company during the year, hence
this clause is not applicable on the company.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, in respect of any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and the repayments or receipts are regular w.r.t of Standard Loan Assets.
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(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no amount more than
ninety days, w.r.t standard loan assets, as on balance sheet date

(e) The company is a registered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC), the main business

of the company is to give loans, and hence this clause is not applicable on the company.

) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no loans or
advances in the nature of loans which are either repayable on demand or without

specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv) The company is a registered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) to which the
provisions of the section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable, hence
this clause is not applicable on the company.

v) The company is a registered Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) to which the
provisions of the Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable, hence
this clause is not applicable on the company.

(vi) The central government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has been regularly
depositing with the appropriate authorities the undisputed statutory dues in conformation
with clause 3(vii) of the Order and there no undisputed statutory dues outstanding as at 31
March 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information/explanations given to us, the Company has some disputes
which have resulted into demands under the Income Tax Act, 1961.The details of which
are given below:

Name of the Nature of Amount not Period to which | Forum where

Statute the Dues | providedfor and theamount dispute is

treated as relates pending

contingent liability] (Assessment
(INR In Lakhs) Year)
Income Tax Income 1.29 A/Y 2012-13 AO/TRO
Act, 1961 Tax
Total 1.29

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company has not surrendered or disclosed as income, any transaction not recorded in the
books of account, during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
paymentof interest thereon to any lender during the year.
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii1)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared willful defaulter by
anybank or financial institution or other lender.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, Company
has not raised funds through term loans during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, Company has not raised
funds through term loans during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no
subsidiary, Joint venture or associates; hence this clause is not applicable on the
company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no
subsidiary, Joint venture or associates; hence this clause is not applicable on the
company.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement u/s 62(1)(c)
or 42 respectively of companies act of shares or convertible debentures (fully,
partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and during the course of our
examination of the Books and Records of the Company in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
on or by the company or its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor we have been informed of such case by the management.

(b) The auditors have not submitted, during the year and upto the date of this report, any
report under sub section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form ADT-
4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as prescribed u/s 406 of the Act
Accordingly, clauses 3(xii) (a), 3 (xii) (b) and 3 (xii) (c) of the Companies(Auditors Report)
Order, 2020 for Nidhi Company, are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 177 and 188 of the Act with respect
to transactions with the related parties, wherever applicable. Details of the transactions with
the related parties have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company is having an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of the company. Attention is also
drawn tothe Annexure-C of our report.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)
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(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the company.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has received registration certificate dated 3rd June 2009 from Reserve Bank of India under
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) and is permitted to carry
on the business as NBFC-Factors in accordance with the Factoring Regulations Act, 2011.

(b) Company is permitted to carry on the business as NBFC-Factors in accordance with the
Factoring Regulations Act, 2011.

The aforesaid sub clauses (a) and (b) are subject to Financial Assets/ Income pattern as on
March 31, 2024. It is reported that the percentage of Factoring Assets to Total Assets is
NIL and Percentage of Factoring Income to Gross Income is 83.59%.

(c) As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, provision of clause (xvi) (c) is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In view of the answer to clause (xvi)(c) above, provision of clause (xvi)(d) is not
applicable to the Company.

As per Cash Flow Statement, during the financial year 2023-2024, there is a net decrease in
cash and cash equivalents of INR (13,121.18) lakhs. The closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents is INR 31.94 lakhs for Current financial Year and for previous financial year
closing Balance of cash and cash equivalents is INR 13,153.12.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly this
clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, we believe that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that company may not be capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due. Attention is also invited to “Material uncertainty related to going concern” section of
our audit report.
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(xx)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no amount
is required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule VII of the Act, accordingly,
provisions of clause nos. (xx) (a) & (xx) (b) of para 3 of the Order are not applied to the
company.

For Raghu Nath Rai & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000451N

SN

VS

Arjun Mehta u[’i::j New Delhi \ -
(Partner) \Q
M. No.: 097685 x@ %h___/’ >

Date: 26/04/2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 24097685BKCTAU6378
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements” section of
our report of even date to the members of IFCI Factors Limited on the accounts for the year ended 31 March

2024.

S1
No

Direction / Sub-direction u/s
143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

Auditor’s reply on action taken onthe
directions

Impact on
the
Financial
Statement

Directions:

1.

Whether the Company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If
yes, the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial

implications, if any, may be stated.

As per the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has a system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system.

Company has Trade Free System in place
for recording factoring transactions and
Oracle for term loan and accounting entries.
Based on the audit procedure carried out and
as per the information and explanations
given to us, no accounting transactions have
been processed / carried outside the IT
system. Accordingly, there

are no

implications on the integrity of the

Accounts.

Nil

Whether there is any restructuring of

an existing loan or cases of
waiver/write off of debts / loans /
interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company’s
inability to repay the loan? If yes,
financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly

accounted for.

Based on the audit procedures carried out
and as per the information andexplanations
given to us, there was no restructuring of any
loans or cases of waiver/write off of debts/
loans/ interest etc.made by the lender to the
company due to the company’s inability to

repay the loan.

Nil

Whether funds received/receivable
for specific schemes from Central
/State Government or its agencies
were properly accounted for/utilized
as per its term and conditions? List

the cases of deviation.

Based on the audit procedures carried out
and as per the information and explanations
given to us, No funds were
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central /State Government or its

agencies the Funds received / receivable for

Nil
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specific schemes from Central / State

Government or its agencies during the year.

Sub-Directions:

Investments: According to information and explanations Nil
Whether the titles of ownership in| given to us and based on the information

respect of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/| available, the titles of ownership in respect
Debentures etc. are available in | of CGS/ SGS/ Bonds/ Debentures etc. are
physical/demat form and these, in| avajlable in demat form and these, in
aggregate, agree with the respective | aggregate, agree with the respective

amounts shown in the Company’s | amounts shown in the Company’s books of

booksof accounts? If not, details | gccounts.

may be stated.

Loans: According to information and explanations Nil
In  respect of  provisioning | given to us and based on the information
requirement of all restructured, | available, there is a system of periodical
rescheduled,  renegotiated  loan- | assessment of realizable value of securities

whether a system of periodical

available  against all  restructured,

assessment of realizable value of | rescheduled and renegotiated loan and

securities available against all such adequate provision has been created during
loans is in place and adequate | the year.
provision has been created during the
year? Any deficiencies in this regard,
if any, may be suitably commented

upon along with financial impact.

For Raghu Nath Rai & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000451N

Arjun Mehta
(Partner)
M. No.: 097685

Date: 26/04/2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: 24097685BKCTAU6378
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“Annexure C” to the Independent Auditors’ Report”

Annexure referred to in paragraph 3(f) under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory requirements™
section of our report of even date to the members of IFCI Factors Limited on the accounts for the
year ended 3 1% March 2024,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of
IFCI Factors Limited (“the Company”) as of 31* March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls overfinancial
reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to
be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit ofinternal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by
the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financialcontrol
with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control
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- ’f«:'r‘ RN E mail: admin@rnr.in ; Website: www.rnr.in

of
\c"

Qew Delhi I

70



procedures that,

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizationsof management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference
to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31*
March 2024, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAIL

For Raghu Nath Rai & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 000451N

Arjun Mehta

(Partner)

M. No.: 097685

Date: 26/042024

Place: New Delhi

UDIN: 2409768 5BKCTAU6378

E mail: admin@rnr.in ; Website: www.rnr.in
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Background

IFCL Factors Limited (IFL) a subsidiary of IFC Limited and registered as an NBFC-Faclior with RBJ, i incopurated an December 14, 1995 having CIR
U74599DL 19930G0107464% having its registerd office at 7t Flonr TFCT Tower, 61 Nehou Phice, New Delli 110019 is enpayed i e business of factoring and relaicd
products fike Domestic Sales Bili Factoring, Purchase Bill Facoring, Hxpart Bil Facioring. and Advances agaiust Future Receivables. 1EL, with a view w expand its
product range and diversifying business risk, has alse ventured into corporate loans backed by property andf or pledge of shazes.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {“Ind AS"S notified by the Mlunistry of Corporate Afairs, Government
oi India under the Carnpanies {Tndian Accounting Standards) Refes, 2015 as amended from time 1o fime, in this regard.. the historica cost basis except for cettain finangiat
instruments that ave measyred at fair valves al the end of each reparting period as explained in the accounting policies below and the relevant provisions of The Companies
Act, 2613 {“Act"). Accounting pelicies have been consistentiy applied except where a newly issued-accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision 10 an existing
accolmiting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use, Historical cost is
penerally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price thai would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 0 transfee a Hiability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,.
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation iechninue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a lability, the Company takes
into account the chameteristics of the assel or liabitity i market parficipants would take those characteristics into aceount when pricing the asset or lizbility at the
measuremeni date Fair value for measurement and/ or disclosure puiposes in these financial stalements is determined on such & basis, except for share based payment
transactions that ars within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing Iransactions that are within the scope of Ind AS116, and measurements that have some similtarities te Fair value
but are not fair vatue, such as vafue in use in Ind AS 36.

Functional and Presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), wiich is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. All amounts have been denominated in‘lacs
and rounded off to the nearest two decimal, except when atherwise indicated, in term of division 3 of Schdule 3 of Companies

Basis of measnerement

The financial staiements have been prepared on a histerical cost basis, except for the follewing material items:
» Financial assets at FVTOC! chat is measured at fair value

« Financial instruments pl FVTPL that is measured at fair value

+ Net defined benefil (asset) Hability - fair vakie of plan assets. less present vatue of defined benefit cbligation

Use of julgements and estimates

In preparing these financial statements, management has. made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policiés and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilifies and assers) a5 on the dale of the financa! stetements and the reported incorne and expenses for the reporting
period. Management believes that the estimates used i the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospeetively.

A, Judgemen(s

Information about the judgements made in applying accounting policies hat have the most significant effects on (he emounts recounised in the fnancial statements is
included in the following notés:

- Classification of financial assels: assessment of business mode! within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the cantractual ferms of Ihe fiancial asset are
salely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

- Impaitment of financial assets: establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial assets.bas increased significantly since initial recopnition,
determinlng methodology for incorporating forward looking information into measurement of expected credit oss " ECL") and selection of models used to meastre ECL

- Equity accounted investees! whether the Company has significant influence over an investee

- Leases: Assesment of Short term leases or fow value leases

B. Assumpiions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties (hat have a significant risk of resulting in a material adiustment in the year ended 31 March 2024 is included in
the follawing notes:

- Impairment of fimancial instruments: determinmg inputs inte the ECL. measurement model, including incorporation of forward looking information including key
assumptions used in estimating recoverable cash flows

- determination of the fair value of fnancial instruments with significant unobservable inpurs

- measurement of defined benefil obligations: key actuarial assump:inr;s

- recagnition of deferred tax assefs: availabitity of fulire taxable profit againsi-which carry-forward ax losses can be used

- determination of the eslimated usefut lives of langible assets and intangible and the assessment as to which componenis of the cost.may be capitalised
- estimates regarding the value in use of the cash generating unit-{CGLI) for non financial assets based on the futurs cash flews.; and

- recognition and measurement of provisions and comingencies: key assurmptions about the liketihood and magnimude of an outfiow of resources
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Signifieant necounding policies

The Company has consistently agplies the foltowmng sccounting policies to sl periods presented i these fnancial statements

a.

Revegue recognition

Tuterest income {rom Tinancial assets s recopnised on an accrual basis usihg Effectiveinterest Rate ['BER) method. The FIR is the rate that exactly discoums the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected tife of the firancial instrument or & shorter period, where appropriate 10 the net carrying amovnt of the
financial asset The EIR is computed basiy the expected cash flows by considering ali the contrachual Lerms of the financial iostrument. The caleulation inclades
all fees, transaciion costs, and alt other premiums or discounts paid or received between parties to the contmct thal are an integral part of the effective interest

rate.

The interest revenue continues fo be recognised at the original EIR applied on the gross carrying amount-for financial asseis (when the asset is net credit
mmpaired). However, for the financial assets thal have become credit impaired subsequent to the initial recognition, Dierest income is calenlited by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. I the assei s no longer credit-imparred, then the caleulation of inlerest income Teverls to the
pross basis,

For financial assels that were credit impaired on initial recognition, interest income is caleulated by .applying the credit-adjusted effective interest mate 1o fhe.
amortised cost of the financial asset.

Penal interest and other overdue charges which are not included in effective interest rate is recognised on realisation, due to uncerainty of realisation and is
accounted for accordingly.

. Amount received from borrowers against loans and advances are appropriated due dote-wise towards other debits, interest overdug and principal overdue, in that
. arder, across the due dates, except w the case of one time or negotiated seitlements, where the appropriation is done as per the terms of the settlement.

v, Recovery from bad debts written off is recognised as income on the basis of actual realisalion from customers

v.  Premum on pre-payment of loans/ reduction in interest rates is recognised as income on receipt basis,

Income from factoring and other financiny activilies is accounted on accrual basis except in the case of non-performing assets where imcome is accounted on
vealization basis as per prudential guidefines laid down by the RBL

Financial instruments
Classifications and snbsequent measurement
Financial assets

On inilial recognition. a financial asset is classified as subsequently measured at either. amortised cost or fawr value through olher comprehensive income
FFVTOCTY or FYTPL, depending on the contractual cashk flow charactenistics of the financial assets and the Company's business model for managing the
financiaf assets.

Business Maodel Assessment

The Company makes an objective assessment of the business medel in-which an asset is held at 2 portfolio level. because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The inforination considered includes:

+ The stated policies and objectives for the ponfolic and the operation- of those policies in practice. in particuiar, whether manapgement’s strategy focuses on
earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a-particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that
are funding those assets or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- The frequency, volume and tinting of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and iis expectations about furure sates activity. However, information
about sales aclivity is net considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated objective for managing the financial asseis is
achieved and how cash flows are realized:

The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held witlin that busioess medel) and Low those risks are managed.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initinl recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets.

Assessment whether contrachial cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purpose of this assessment, “principat’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset an initial recognilion. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the
time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount oulstanding during a paricular period of time and for oller basiz lending risks
and costs, a5 well as profit margin.

Iz assessing whéther the contractua cash [lows are solely payments of principal and imerest, the Company applies judgement and considers all the contraciual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains any contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
casht flows such that it would not meet this condition. Tn making the said assessment,.the Company considers prepayment and extension terms, features that
modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. pericdical tesct of the mterest rates),

Financial assets at Amortised Cost
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost only if both of 1he following conditions are mal
« Itis held within a business modst whose abjective is to hold assets in order to collect coniraciual cash flows:

« The comractual terms of the financial asset represent contractual cash flows that are solely payments of priacipal and interest.

Subsecquently, these are measured at amoriised cost usiny the effective inferest rate (EIR) metliod less any impainment Josses.
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1II.

Finaiscial resels at Fapr Value theangh Other Compreliensive Income $ FYTOCE)

A fAinsncial asset i measared a1t FYTOCT ondy if both of the following conditions are mer;
= Iris held within a business model whose sbjective ts achiaved by both eollecling contrdciual gash flovs and selling Tinancial assels
= The contracteal termis of the financial asset represent contractual cash fiows that are salely payments of principal and inzorest.

Subsequently, these are measured at fair value and changes iherein, are recognised in other comprehensive income. [mpairment losses on said financial assets aré
recognised in other comprehensive income and do rot reducs the carrying amount of the financial asset i Ihe balance sheet

Tinancial assels at Fair Value through Prafit and Loss (FVTPL)
Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amoriised cost or as FVOUT, is classified as at FVTIPL

Subscguently, these are measured at fair value and changes therein, are secognised in profit and loss account.

Investment in equily instryments

All equity investments in seope of Ind AS 109 {i.c other than equity investments in subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures) are measured at FVTPL. Execpt a3
specifed in the Note No.4

Subsequently, these are measured af fair value and changes therein, are recognised in profit and loss account. However co initial recognition of an equity
instrument that is not held for trading, the Company nay irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in QCIL, This election is made on an
investment by investment basis.

Financinl liabilitics and equity instromengs

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are ¢lassified as either financial lizbilities or as equity in sconrdance with the substance of the contractual
arrangemeris and the definitions of a fimancial Hability and an equity instrument.

Financial habsliues are classified, at initial recognition, as financial Habilities at fair value through profit or loss or amartised cost, as appropriate and is
accordingly accounted for

AR equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual inlerest in the assets of an entity afier deducting all of its liabilities, Equily instruments issued by the
Company is recopnised ot the proceeds received, net of directly atiributable transaction costs.

Measurement Basis
Amortised cost

Amertised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the prineipal repayments, plus or minus the
curnulative amorlisation using the EIR method of discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR and, for financial
assets, adjusted for any loss allowance

Fair Valsation

Fair value is the price that would -be veceived o sell an asset or paid to transfer-a lability in an orderdy transaction between market pariicipants at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advaniageous market to which the Company has access at that date, The fair value of a liability
reflects i non-performance risk. )

When one is available, the Company measures the fair value of ant instrument using the quoted price in an active market for that imstrument. A rharket 1$ regarded
as active if ransactions-for the assel or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volunie to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there is no-quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the
use of unohservable inputs. The valuation technique. tncorporates all of the factors ti}_qt market participants would tske inle account in pricing 2 tansaciion.
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VIL

De-recognition/Modification of Guancisl assels and fmangind labilities
Derecognition of financial assets and financial linbilities
Finarcial assets

A financiat assel {or, where applicable, a part of a fmancial assel or part of a group of similar financial assets) 7s primarily de-recognised (Le removed from the
Company’s balance shest) when:

« The rights to receive cash flews from the asset have expired, or

+The Company has wansferred its rights to receive cash flaws from the asset or has assumed an obligation 1o pay the received cash flows in-full without material
delay ta a third party under a *pass-through” arrangement; and either (a} the Company has transferred subsantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the.
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantialiy all the risks and rewards of the assel, but has transfermred control of the asset,

When the Campany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assel of ias entered info @ pass-thirough arapgement, it evaluates i and to whal exient
it has refzined the risks and rewards of ownership. When 1t has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues fo recognize the iransferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. The Company
atso recognise a liabitity for the consideration received attributable to the Company’s continuing invelvement on the asset transferred. The transferred asset and
the assaciated Habilify are measured on a basis that reflects the righls and obligations that the Company has relained.

On 'de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount.of Lhe asset (or the carrying amount allocated 1o the portion of the asset de-
recognised) and the sum of (i) the considerzlion received {including any new assct oblained less any new Hability assumed) and {ii} any cunmlative gain or loss
that had been recognised it OCI is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The' Company de-recognises a financial liability when its conactual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expired.

Modiffcations of financial asscls and fimancial Babiities
Financial asse(s

If the terms of a financial asset are maodified, the Company-evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified asset are substantally différent. If the cash flows are
substantially different, then the medification resulls in derecognition of the original financizl asset and new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in de-recognition of the financiat asset. In this case, the
Company recaiculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount ansing from adjusting the pross carrying amount a3 &
modification gain ar loss in profil or loss. Any costs or Fees incurred adjust the cacrying amount of the modified financiat asset and are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified financial asset by recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.

If such a medification is carvied out because of financial difficulties of the borrawer, then the gain or loss is presented tosciber with impairment losses. In other
cases, it is presented as interest income.

Financial Jiabilities

The Company de-recognizes a fmancial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are sobstautially defFerent. In this case, &
new financial Hability based on the-modified tenns is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carmying amount of the financizi liability extinguished
and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit orlass.

[F the madification is not accounted as derecognition, then the amertised cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash Nows at the original
EIR and the resulting gainor loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred adjust the carying amount of the medified financial liability and are
amortised over the remaining ferm of the madified financial fiability by recomputing the EIR rate on the instrument.

Offsefting of finaocial mstramenty

Financial assets and financial {iabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset
the recagnised amounts 2nd there is an intention 1o setle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the hability simultancousty.

Tpairment of Financial Assets

The Cumpany recognises impairment allowantes for ECL on ali the financial assers that are not measuzed at FYTEL:

ECL are probability weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

financial assets that are not credit impaired — as the present valve of all cash shartfalls that are.possible within 12 months after the reporiing date.

ftnarcial assers wilh significant increase in credit risk but not credit impaired ~ as the present value of all cash shonfalis that reselt from all possible default
events over the expecied life of the financial assél.

finaacial assers that are credit impaired ~ as the difference between the gross carvying amount and the present value of estimated cash fliws

undrawi loan commitments - as the present value of the difference between the contmetual cash flows that are due to the Company if the commitinent is drawn
dewn and the cash flows that the Cempany expects to receive

With respect to trade receivables and other financial assets, the Company measures the loss ailowande at an amount equal 1o lifetime cxperied credit Tosses.
Loss allowances for financial asseis measured at amontised cost are deducted from the gross carzving amount of the assets. For financial assets at FVTOCT, the
loss aligwance is recognised in GCL

3
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Woite-aft
Financial assels are weitten off (either partially or in full) when there 1s no reasonable expectation of recoverng a Huancial assst-m 015 enlirety or o’ portion
tievea!, This 15 nenerally The case whes the Campany deterniines that the herrower doss not liave zssets or sowrees of income that could genente sufﬁmen. cath

flows to tepay the wnounls subjsct Lt (he wiite-off. This assessment is camizd ow al the individaal asset fevel,

However, financial assets that arg written off eould sl be subject ta enforeement setivities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into acoount legal
advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised 1n profif or loss.

Investment s subsidiavies, assoeiates and join( ventures

Tire Company has ot made any investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures for FY 2023-24

Leases

Leases. are classified as finance leases whenever (he terms of the lease transfer substantially ali the risks and rewards of owneship to the lesser. All other leages are
classified as operating leases.

I. The Company as lessor'

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amounl of the Company's net invesiment in the Jeases. Finance fease income is
alloeated to accounting periods so as o reflect 2 constant periodic rale of retuen on the Company's net investment outstanding in respect of the Jeases.

Rental income from operating leases is gencraily recognised on & straipht-line basis over tse term of the relevant lease. Wirere the rentals are structured solely to

‘increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases, such increases ave recognised o the year i

which such benefits acerue
%, The Company as lessee

‘The Company recognises a right-al-use asset and a lease Jability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is instially measured at cosi, which comprises
he initial amount of the fzase lability Company is reasonably cerfain to exercise, lease payments inan optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an exlension option,

The lease liability is subsequenily neasured at amortised cost using the effeciive interest method It is-remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payiments arising from & change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Compaity’s estimale of the amount expected to be payable under a residval value
guaramee, or if Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise & purchase, extension or termination option.

When the tease lability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is tnade to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit
orloss if the carrying amount of the right-of-ase asset has been reduced to zero,

Lense ‘Liability and the right of vse asset have been adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimale of cosis (o disimantle and remove the-undeslying asset or to testore the site on which it is losated, less.any lease incentives received,

Emplayee bencfits

Shortierm employee beneliis

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the relaied servige s provided. A linbtlity is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a
present lega! or constructive bligation 10 pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii.  Post employement henefits

a.  Defined henefit plans
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit employee scheme in the form of Gratuity. Expense for (he year 15 determined on ihe basis of actuanal valuation of the
Company's year-end obligation in this regard and the value of year end assets of the schente.

Other lang term emplayee benefiis

Benefits under the Company's leave encashmenand and leave fare concession constituie other long term employae benefits. The Company’s net. obligation in
respect of leave encashment is the amount of fulure benefft that employees have present. value, and the fair value of any related assets s deducied. The
calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method, Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in profit or Joss in lhe pericd in which they arise.
Provison for Leave fare concession 15 being made on aciuanal valuation basis,

k. Deflived contribution plans

Provident Fund

The Company pays fixed contribution (¢ Provident Fund st predetarmined rates to a separate trust, whicli invests the funds in permitted securties. The
contitbutions to  the fand for the year are recognized as expense and ave chirrged to the profit or toss. The cbligation of the Company is o make such fixed
contributions and Ip ensure 2 mnimur rate of return to the members as specified by the Government of India {Gol}

Incomie Taxes

Income-13% expense comprises of current tax (Le amount of iax for the period detesmined in accordance wilh the ncome tax law) and defeed fx charge or credil
{réllecting the 1ax effects of temporary drlferences berween tax base and book base). 1 s recognised in profil or foss excepl o the extent (hat it relates 1o a business
combination, or sems recoanised directly in equity or in OCY




Carrent fax

Current iax s measured al the amonnt expecied to be paid In respect of taxable incame for e yewr in accordance with die Tncame Tax Acs, 1981, Currenl tax
comprises the tax payable op the taxable inconie or loss for the year and any adjusimeni (0 the tax paysble in respect of previous years. J is.measured usig TN
1ates cnacted or substantively enacted al the reponing date. Minimum atiersalive iax { MAT ) under the provisions of the Incoine Tax Asy, 1967 is recognised as
cutren! fax in ihe statement of profit and loss.

Current tax assets and habilities are offset only if, the Conipany:
a) has & legally enforceable right (o set off the recognised amounis; and
b intends either io setthe on a net basis, or fa realize the assel and seitle the Eability simubtanecusly,

Deferred fax

Deferred 1ax is regognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are reviewed =t each reporting date and based on management™s judgement, are reduced 1o the extent
(hat it is oo longer probable that the related tax benefit wiil be realised; such reductions are-reversed when the probability of fiture taxable profils fmproves.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and jecognised to the extent that it has become probable that future txabte profits will be
available against which hey can be used. Deferred tax is. measured at the tax rates that are expeced {0 be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
using tax rates enacted or subsiantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred ax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Campany expects, al the reporting date, to
recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are offset only if the Company:
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and
b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to intome faxes levied by the same taxation authority,

The credit available under the Aci in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset only when and to ihe extent there is convincing evidence that the Company
will pay normat income tax during the period for whicl: the MAT credit can be cartied fervward for set-off against the nonnal tax Hability. MAT eredit recognised:
as an assel is reviewed ai each balance sheel date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convineing evidence no Jonger exists.

ETOPLITY, DAL ANA EQMIPINENT AN LAVESTTIENT DIoperTy.
Recognition and measnrement

Properiy, pfant and equipmeni held for vse or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumuldted depreciation and accumulated
imvpairment Tosses. The cost includes non-relundable txes, duties, freight and other incidental expenses refated to the acquisition and insillation of the respective
assets

Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method over the useful life as provided under Schedvle IT to the Companies Act, 20 3. Depreciation is. calculated on
pro-rata basis, including the month of addition and excluding the month of sale/disposal. Léasehold improvements are amortised aver the underlying: lease term on a
slraight fine basis. Residual value in respect of Buitdings and Vehicles is considered as 5% of the cost and in case of other assets * "Nil*.

The cstimated useluf lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of esch reporting period, with the eifect of any changes in estimate
accounted for an 2-prospective basis. Depreciation on PPE is provided on strajght Line Methed at tie estimated useful life offixad assets prescribed by Schedule 11 of
the Companies Act, 2013 or based on Management assessment of useful life, if jower than what is prescribed under schedule. Fixed Assets costing less than Rs. 5000/-
individually are charged 1o the Profit & Lass Account in the year of purchase,

Intangible assets consisting of Computer software with indefinite period utility / user rights and having a usefu life tasting with that of the equipment have been
capitalized with the cost of computer,

Software carsyiy an identifiable period utility of at least five years is amertized on a straight fine basis aver a period of 5ix years {rom the date put into use. Sofiware
with bimited edition /period utility i.e. requiring annual revision is charged w Profit and Loss Account in the year of purchase.

Nature of Assets and their Useful Lifes are a5 under:-
Furniture & Fixture 10 years

Office equipment 5 Year

Computer Hardware

a  Server & Network 6 Years

b, End User devices3 Years

Further, regarding the intangibles, we are iking use full life 6 years because the sanse are the part of server & networks.

A summary of the amartisationf depletion policies applied for the company oilier intangible assets ta the extent of depreciable ameunt as Follows:-
Technical Know —how - Over the use full life 5+ 35 vears

Computer software : Dver the use fuli 1ifs 5- 10 years

Licence & Fees Amortised over the femainder of the licence period for the date of commencement of the commercial operation
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intangilile.assees
Recognition aed weaswrenieint

Intangible assets’ are recognized at vost of acquisiion which includes all expenditure that can be directly sitribuied or allocaied on & reasenable and consisient basis, fo

crealr, produce or making the assed ready for iis intendad use.

Amortisation

Amertisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful tives. The estimated useful Hfe and amortisation method are teviewed at the end of each
weporting peried, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition

An infangible asset is derecognized on dispesal, or when o future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arfsing from de-recognition
of an mizngible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amoant of the assel, is recogaised in profit or loss when the asset

is de-recognized.

Impairmeat of nen-financial nssets

At each reporiing date, the Company reviews tlie carrying aniount of ils non financial assets {other than assets held for sate and deferred lax- assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exisis, then the sssel's receverabie amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped togethier into the smallest group of assets that penerates cash.inflows from continuing use that is largely independent of 1he
cash lnflows of other assets or CGUs,

The 'recoverable amount’ of an asset or COU s the greater of its value in use and ils fair value less costs to sell *Value in use’ is based on the estimated fultire cashi
flows, discounted 1o {heir present value usiag & pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the thime value of money and the risks specific to Lthe

assed ar CGLT

Impairmient losses are recognised in Stafment of Profit and Loss account, An impairment toss 1s reversed only to the extent that the assel's carrying amount decs not
exceed the carryi nyg amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amontisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Foreign currency transactions

The expenses and income in foreign exchange (ransactions are accounted for at the rates prevailing on the dage of ansactioins? al the forward rate, if booked, for such
wansaction. Assers and labilities held in foreign currencies and accrwed incemes and expenditare i foreign curencies are transfated into Indian Rupess at the rates
advised by Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI) prevailing towards.the close of the sccounting period. Gaing/ losses, if any, on valuation of

Provisions nnd contingencies related to claims, litigation, ete.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal and constructive obligation as a tesult of a past event, for which it is. probable that cash outflow wilt be
required and a refiable stimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation. Provistons are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the
expeanditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used lo determine the present value is a pre-tax rate thal
reflects eurrent markel assessments of the tine value of money and the risks specific 1o the lizbility.

CON{NgENT Liabalrties and COnSukgent Assess

A contingent liability exisis when there is a possible but not probabie obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will nol, require an cutflow of
resources, of & present obligation whose amaunt cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent labilities du not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility
of outflaw af rescurces is remote.

Cantineent asspts are discinsad in the finaneial warempnts where an inflaw of sensemie henefiis is nrobahle

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash comprises cash on hand and demiand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that ave readily convertible o known amennis of cash
and which are subaject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

HRorrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to (he aequisition, construction or produstion of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take 2 substantial period of
lime ta gel ready For their inlended use or sals. are added 1o (he cost of those assels, untl such time a5 the assets aré subswntially ready for thel? iniended usc pr sale.
Interest income =arned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted ffom the borrowing costs
<fipible for capitatisation,

All other borrewing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Derivative Finan cial Instruments

The Company emers inlo derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure lo inerest mate and foreign exchange rale wisks, including foreian
exchange forward conteacts, interest rate swaps and €ross currency swaps

Desivativés are initially recognised at fair value al the. date the derivative contricis are entered inte and are subsequently remeasured to their Tair value at Ihe end
of each reporting. period. The resuling gain or ess is recognised in the Siatement of Profit and Loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as 2 hedging fstrement, in which event the timing of the recognition In the Statement of Profit and Loss depends on the pature of the bedging relationship

and the nature of the hedged o




5

Segment veporting

Opesating segments are reporied in amanner consisient with the Tmemal reperting provided o the Chiel Opesating Decision Maker {CODMY of the company, The
CODM is respansible for allocating resources ahd assessing performance of ke operating segments of the Company. Refer nofe 33 for details an segment information

presented.

Classification of Assets and Pravisioning

1} A} credil exposures are classified into performing and non-performing assets (NP As) as per goidelines laid down by the RBL Funher, MPAs are classified mto sub-
standard, doubiefu and loss assets based on the criteria stipulated by RB1L

i) Provision for NPAs and restruclured/rescheduled assets 15 made as per gridelines laid down by the RBIL

iii) Pravision for standard assels is made (@ 0.50%,

Additinnal provision is made against specific assets over and above what is stated above, if in the opinion of the managemen, increased provision is necessary.

jv) As per RBI rules and regulation at the time of becoming NPA, 0% provision is fo be made bul as per LFL policy 15% provision is made.

v) IFL have provisioning and write off policy which was approved on dated 29/0472013 aligned as per RBI policy, According to that in case of unsecured loan we
have te make 15% provision on the date of accounts being classified as sub-standard and after 12 monih we have o make 50% provision and after 18 month we have
to make provision 100% {after classification account as a doubiiul)

From Apri! 2017 onwards RBI policy has become more stringent. As per RBI policy on the date of account elassification as sub-standard we have to make provision
10% and after 12 month we have to make provision 100% {afier classification account as a doubiful). Se we are following RB1 policy .

Factored Delits

Drebis factored are shown under ‘Loans'. The unpaid balance of debts factored and due to the clients or collection is included under *Other Financial Liabilities as
‘Conlractual Liability against Collection of Factoring’.
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IECI FACTORS LIMITED

CIN NO:-U74899D1.1995G 0074649
7th Flaor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars

Assets

Financlal Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans

Investments

Other Financial assets
Total

Non-financial Assets

Current tax assets (Net)
Deferrad tax Assets (Met)
Property, Flant and Equipment
Cther Intangible assets

Gther non-financial assets
Total

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Debt Securities

Borrowings [Other than Deht
Seturities)

Other financial Eabilities
Total

Non-Financial Liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax fabilities {Net)
Other nen-financial labilities
Total

EQUITY
Equity Share capital

Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature

Other Equity
Total
Total Liabllities and Equity

Summary of Significant Accounting Polides {1-6}

The accampanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements (1-56)

As per our Audit Repart of even date attached

For Raghu Nath Raf & Co.
Chartered Accauntants
Firrn Registration No. 000541N

{CA Arjun Mehta)
Partrer
Membership No. 97685

Date: Aprik 26, 2024
Flace: New Delhl

Year Ended Year Ended
Note No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% i Lakhs Tin Lakhs
Audited Audited

1 31.94 13,153.12
3 507.09 2,643.50
4 934.43 1,070.58
5 2592 253.86
1,899.37 17,121.04
B 7072 11677
7 P 8,637.51
8 Q.98 531
9 6,98 2.7
0 7875 97.94
157.44 £.867.16
2,056.81 25,988.30
11 = 14,107.88

12 o =
13 239.2% 1,294.25
239.2% 15,402.13
14 419,52 218.07
15 6.24 9.14
425,76 227.21
16A 27,543.89 27,943.89

1sB - -
16C {26,552.13} (17,584.93)
1,381.75 10,358.96
2,056.81 25,988.30
{Alan Savio Pagheco}  {Sachikanta Mishra)

i ing Di inee Director

DIN: 03497265

{Chirag Sapra)
Chief Financial Dfficer
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1FCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1935G0O1074649
7th Floor, IFCE Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi- 110019

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERICD ENDED MARCH 31, 24324

Particulars Note Na,
Revenue from operations

interest Income 17
Discount and Service Charges 17A
Application and Administration Charges 178
Total Revenue from operations

Other Income 18
Total income

Expenses

Finance Cests 19
Employee Benefits Expenses 20
Depreciation, amertizaticn and impairment &
Impairment on Financial Instruments 21
Cthars expenses 22

Total Expenses

Profit / {loss) before exceptional items and tax {Il-1V)
Exceptional Items

Profit/{loss) before tax

Tax Expense:

{2} Current Tax

{2) Deferred Tax

Profit / ([oss) for the period after Tax

Add:- Provision Reversed under Ind AS as per RBI
Less:- Transfer to Impairment Reserve as per RBI
Profit/{loss) for the period

QOther Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 23
Incorne tax refating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Total Comprehensive Income far the period
Earnings Per Equity Share

Basic {%)

Diluted (%)
EPS is not annulised

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (1-6)

Year Ended March Year Ended March 31,
31,2024 2023
% in Lakhs T in Lakhs
Audited Audited
11.34 652.64
1,588.06 333.11
- 2.57
1,995.40 988.32
188.77 487.25
2,188.17 1,475.57
215,05 1,470.78
349.68 551.25
7.08 1649
3,617.63 (798.04)
155.13 289.44
2,344.57 1,529.82
(156.40) (54.34)
{156.40) [54.34)
8,637.51 367.4¢
{8,793.91) (421.83)
11,235.29 (504.93)
{11,235.29) 904.93
{8,793.91) {421.83)
(173.29) 189.23
- {52.64)
{173.29) 136,59
{8,967.20) (285.25)
(3.15) {0.15)
{3.15) {0.15)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements (1-56)

As per our Audit Report of even date attached
For Raghu Math Rai & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000541N

{CA Arjun Mehta}
Partner
Membership No. 57685

Date: April 26, 2024
Place: Mew Delhi

{Alan Savie Pacheca)
Managing Director
DiN: 03497265

{Chirag Sapra)
Chief Financial Officer
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Nominee Director
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{Smit Kumar)
Company Secretary



IFCI FACTORS LEMETED
CIN NO:-LU74859DL1995G0I074549
7tk Flgor, IECI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

Statement of Changes in Equity

A, Equity $hare Capital

B. Instyuments entirely equity in nature
Compulsarily Convertible Preferance Shares

€, Other Equity

X in Lakhs]

April 01, 2022 - - 10,502.99 1,755.73 31.65 1,008.20
Total Compiehansive
Income for the year E - - - - - {421.83) 96.02 40,57 {285.25)
Transfer from retained
Bamings 504.593 {an4.93) =
Share |ssue Expenses - - =

Cenversion in Equity
Shares = = E E =
March 31, 2023 - B 11,407.92 1,755.73 31.65 1,008.20
Total Comprehensive
tncome for the year - - - - - - (8,793.31) {199.54) 26.24 {8,967.20)
Transfer from retained
earnings {11,235.29) 11,235.29 .
Share Issue Expenses = = = = = 3 2
Corversion in Equity
Shares B -
March 3%, 2024 - - 172.63 1,755.73 3165 | 1,008.20

(30,274.32) {253.55 (70.39)] (17,299.69)|

(31,601.09} (257.54) (29.82)) (17,584.93)

{29,159.70} (357.07) (3.58)[ (26,552.13)

For and en behalf of Board of Directors
The accompanying notes zre &n integral part of the financial statemnents [1-56)

As per our Audit Report of even date attached

For Raghu Nath Rai & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. DD0541N [Sachikanta Mishra)
Nominee Director

[DNN: 02755068

(Alan Savio Pachece)
Managing Director
DIN: 03497265

{CA Arjun Mehta}

Partnar

Membership No. 97685

Data: April 26, 2024
Place: New Dalhi

{Chirag Sapra)
Chief Financial Officer
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IFCt FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G0OI074649
7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 210019
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 3%, 2023
% In Lakhs in Lakhs
o Audited Audited
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Tax {156.40) [54.34)
Adjustments for: -
Depreciation/Amortisation 7.08 1649
Bad Debis Written Off 31,900.24 522.29
Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Debts {30,492.53) (2,479.45)
Pravisicn for Standard Assets 246.93 {18.42)
Allowanze for Bad and Doubtful Debts and Loans {37.00) 1,177.54
Stamp Outy for issue of shares - -
Amount directly charged to Other Equity 26.24 {2.78)
Change in DTA transferred through Q€| (0.98)
Provision for Gratuity {16.97) 2005
Provision for Leave Encashmant {28.51) (53.58)
{Income)/Less From Mutaal Fund (87.72} {120.98)
Interest on FDRs - (353.15)
FV of Financial Asset at amortised cost 3.20
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,361.35 (1,344.49)
Mowvement in Working Capital
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings (14,107.88) (3,395.48)
Increase/ {Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other
FinancialfNon-Financial liabilities (1,057.86) {784.58)
{Increase)/Decrease in Factoring {4,299.71} 8,582,57
[Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances, Other Current
& Non-Current Assets 4,958.59 4,263.22
Net Cash Used in Operations (13,145.52) 7,300.85
Direct Tax Paid E -
Net, Cash Flow From Ogerating Activities -13,145.52 7,300.85
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property Plant and Equipment / Capital
Advance - (0.77)
Investment in Current and Non Current Investments (63.39) -
Interest on FDRs = 353.15
Income From Mutual Fund 87.72 120.8
Net Cash Flow From Investing Activities 24.33 473.36
£. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Subordinate Debts Raised
Dividend Paid -
Perpetua Non-convertible Debenture lssued
Expenses Related to lssuance of Share Capital
Dividend Paid
Tax cn Distributed Profits
Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities - -
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE} IN CASH AND CASH (13,121.18) 7, 77421
QOpening Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,153.12 5,378.91
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 31.94 13,153.12
Note:
Year Ended Year Ended
1 Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2023
X in Lakhs X in Lakhs
Cash on Hand 0.00 0.03
Balarces with Banks 31.93 13,153.09
31.94 13,153.12
As per our Audit Report of even date attached
For Raghu Nath Rai & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo. 000541N
{Alan Savio Pacheco)  {8achikanta Mishra}

{CA Arjun Mghta)
Partner
Membership No. 97685

Date: April 26, 2024
Place: New Delhi

Managing Director
DIN: 02397265

[Chirag Sapra)
Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary



IFCL FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995GOID7 4649
7th Hoor, IFCl Tower, 61, Mehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Hote No. March 31, 2624 March 3%, 2023
Note No 16A %in Lakhs T In Lakhs
k. Equity Share Capital
a. Authorlsed Share Capital
300,000,000 (30,000,000} Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 30,000.00 30,000.00
200,000,000 (20,000,000} Prefernce Shares of Rs.10 each 20,000.00 20,000.00

50,000.00 50,000.00
b. Issued Share Capital
279,438,860 (279,438,86) Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 27,943.89 27,943.89
279,438,860 (279,438,86)Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 27,943.89 27,943.89
¢, Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reportlng year
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 27,943.85 27,943.89
Outstanding at the end of the year 27,943.89 27,943.89
a. Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Equity sharas of Re 10 each fully paid
Name of Shareholder
IFCl Limited 89.50% 93.90%
b. Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiarles{ associates
Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its Helding company are stated below:
IFCI Limited 27,91,54,692 27,91,54,692
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995GCI074640
7th Flaor, IFCI Tower, 81, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Particulars

Note No 16C

¢. Statutory Reserve Fund

{under section 45 IC of Reserve Bank of india Act)
Qpening Balance

Add: Transfer from Surplus Balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing Balance

d. General Reserve

Opening Balance

Less: Transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss
Closing Balance

e. Impairment Reserve

Opening Balance

Add: Transfer from Retained Earnings
Closing Balance

f. Security Premium Reserve
Opening Batance

Add/Less during the year
Closing Balance

g. Retained Earnings
Opening Balance
Add: Profit / {Loss) for the period
Less:- Share Issue Expenses
Less: Appropriations

Transfer to Impairment Reserves
Closing Balance

h. Other Comprehensive Income

I. Equity Instruments through Cther Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance

Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year

Closing Balance

ll. Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans
Opening Balance

Add: Other Comprehensive income for the year
Closing Balance

Total Comprehensive Income

Total Other Equity

Note No.

Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
X in Lakhs % in Lakhs

1,755.73 1,755.73
1,755.73 1,755.73
31.65 31.65
31.65 31.65
11,407.92 10,502.9%
(11,235.29) 904.93
172.63 11,407.92
1,008.20 1,008.20
1,008.20 1,008.20
(31,601.09}) {30,274.32}
(8,793.91) (421.83)
11,235.29 {904.93)
{29,159.70} {31,601.09)
{157.54) (253.55)
-199.54 56.02
(357.07) {157.54)
{29.82) {70.39}
26.24 40.57
(3.58) {29.82)
{360.65) (187.35)

(26,552.13)

{17,584.93)
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74899DL1995G0I074649
7th Floar, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars : March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in Lakhs % in Lakhs
1. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.00 0.03
Balances with Banks 9.56 206.79
Fixed Deposit 22.37 12,946.30
31.94 13,153.12
2. Bank Balance other than ahove
Earmarked balances for Unpaid Dividend - -
3. Loans -
1 ; Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
% in Lakhs Tin Lakhs
At Amortised Cost
{A) Product Type
Term Loans 1,372.09 5,592.87
Factoring - 28,045.16
Total - Gross 1,372.09 33,638.03
Less: lmpairment loss allowance (465.00) (30,994.53)
Total Net 907.09 2,643.50
{B) Secured/Unsecured
(i) Secured by assets 1,372.09 4,831.46
(i) Covered by Bank/Government Guarantees - 263.59
(iii} Unsecured - 28,542.99
Total (B}-Gross 1,372.09 33,638.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance (465.00) (30,994.53)
Total (B) Net 807.09 2,643.50
{C) Loans in India
(i) Public Sectar - -
{i) Others 1,372.09 33,638.03
Total (C)- Gross 1,372.09 33,638.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance {465.00) {30,994.53)
Total {C) Net 907.09 2,643.50
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4, Investment

‘Particulars

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Equity Instruments

- 1 M Financial Asset Reconstruction Company Pvt. Ltd.
26,605 Security Receipts of Rs. 750 each fully paid up
{Backed by NPA sold by the Company)

- Raytheon Assets Reconstruction Put. Ltd.

67150 Security Receipts of Rs. 1000 each fully paid up
{Backed by NPA sold by the Company)

Investment in Mutal Fund

Total — Gross (A)

(i) Overseas Investments
(i) Investments in India
Total (B)

Less: Allowance for Impairment foss (C)
Total — Net D= {A}-{C}

5. Cther Financial Assets
[Particufars

Advance to Employess
Security Deposits

Other debts*

Sundry debtors

Others

Interest Accrued But Not Due

* 100% provided for as aging more then 3 years.
6. Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars

Advance Income Tax (including earlier years) (Net of Provisions)
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Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin Lakhs T in Lakhs
199.54 399.08
671.50 671.50
63.39
934.43 1,070.58
934.43 1,070.58
934.43 1,070.58
934.43 1,070.58
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
T in Lakhs Tin Lakhs
3.18 7.81
0.08 0.08
4,15 11.46
18.50 40.32
0.66
= 193.53
25.92 253.86
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
X in Lakhs % in Lakhs
70.72 116.77
70.72 116.77




7. Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Particulars

Deferred Tax Assets
Less:- Deferred Tax Liabilities

8. Property Plant & Equipment

Particulars

Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance

a Furniture and Fixtures
b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

Addition/(Sale) during the period
a Furniture and Fixtures

b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

Closing Balance

a Furniture and Fixtures
b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance

a Furniture and Fixtures

b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

Depreciation for the period
a Furniture and Fixtures

b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreciation
a Furniture and Fixtures

b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

Year Ended Year Ended
NMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Zin Lakhs X in Lakhs

- 8,673.62

- 36.12

- 8,637.51

Year Ended Year ﬁhdéé ]
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Xin Lakhs % in Lakhs

9.17 9.17

5.17 5.17

120.33 119.56

134.67 133.91

- 0.77

- 0.77

9.17 9.17

5.17 5.17

120.33 120.33

134.67 134.67

8.11 7.48

4,19 3.75

117.07 108.09

129.36 119.32

0.78 0.63

0.41 0.44

3.15 8.97

4.33 10.04

8.88 8.11

4.59 419

120.22 117.07

133.69 129.36
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Net Block

a Furniture and Fixtures
b Office Equipment

¢ Computer Hardware

9. Other Intangible Assets

Gross Carrying Value
Opening Balance
a Computer Software

Addition/(Sale} during the period
a Computer Software

Closing Balance

a Computer Software

Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance
a Computer Software

Depreciation for the period
a Computer Software

Closing Balance of Accumulated Depreciation
a Computer Software

Net Block
a Computer Software

10. Other Non-FinanciaI Assets

Indirect Taxes Recoverable
Prepaid expenses
Advance recoverable cash in kind

0.29 1.07
0.58 0.98
0.11 3.27
0.98 5.31

% in Lakhs

¥ in Lakhs

98.32 98.32
98.32 98.32
98.32 98.32
98.32 98.32

88.59 82.14
88.59 82.14

2.75 6.45
2.75 6.45
91.34 88.59
91.34 88.59
6.98 9.73
6.98 9.73

T in Lakhs

Zin Lakhs

74.31 91.71
4.44 6.22
78.75 97.94
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11. Dethecurites

~ March 31, 2023
Xin Lakhs

in Lahs

At Amortised Cost

Secured#

Redeemable, Non-Convertible Bonds - 4,106.86
Unsecured

Redeemable, Non-Convertible Bonds - 10,001.02
Total (A) - 14,107.88
Debt securities in India - 14,107.88
Debt securities outside India

Total (B) to tally with {A) - 14,107.88

# Secured by pari passu charge on corporate loan receivables & current assets other than factored receivables.

12. Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities

X in Lakhs Tin Lakhs
At Amortised Cost
Secured
- Term loans FCI - -

Total (A} 5 3

Borrowings in India - s
Borrowings outside India
Total {B) to tally with (A) = 5

13. Other Financial Liabilities

Xin Lakhs X in Lakhs
Interest accrued and not due on Debt Securities - 1,106.00
Other Payables 239.29 188.26
239.29 1,294.25
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14. Provision _ )

ar Ende

Particulal

% in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Provision for employee benefits

- Gratuity 82.60 99.58

- Leave Encashment 49.47 77.98

Contingent Provisions against Standard 287.44 40.51
419.52 218.07

15. Other Non-financial liabilities

% in Lakhs % in Lakhs

TDS Payable 3.41 6.67
GST Payable ‘ 0.06 0.59
Other Taxes } 2.77 1.89

6.24 9.14
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
CIN NO:-U74829D11995G0I074645
7th Floor, IFCl Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New pelhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL SEATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

17. Interest Income

Tin Lakhs Zin Lakhs

Financial assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on Loans 11.24 B52.64
Total 11.34 652.64

17A . Discount and Service Charges

<in Lahs % in Lakhs

Financial assets measured at Amortised Cost
Discount and Service Charges 1,588.06 333.11
Total 1,988.06 333.11

178 . Application and Administration Charges

%in Lakhs
Financial assets measured at Arnortised Cost
application and Administration Charges - 2.57

Total g 2.57

% In Lakhs " zinlakhs

income from Mutual Funds 6.86 120.98
Interest On FORs 87.72 353.15
Miscellaneous income 94.1% 13.12
Total 188.77 487.25

9, Finance Costs

ies measured at Amortised Cost %in Lakhs % in Lakhs

Financial liabi

Interest on Barrowings 214.53 1,476.05
other Borrowing Costs 0.52 5.27
Total 215.05 1,470.78

20, Employee Benefits Expenses
- -

% [n Lakhs

%in Lakhs
Salaries and wages 316.02 509.49
Contribution to provident and other funds 21.92 25.35
Staff welfare expenses 11.74 16.40
Total 349.68 551.25

21. Impairment on Financial Instruments

%in Lakhs < in Lakhs
RBad Debts Written Off 31,863.24 522.2%
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts Written Back [36,492,53) (2,479.45)
Standard / Restructure Assets 246.93 [18.42)
Bad and Doubtful Debts and Loans — 1,177.54
Total 1,617.63 -798.04

92



IFCI FACTORS LIMITEE
CIN NO:-U74899D11995GO1074649

7th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi - 110019

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

22. Other Expenses

Particulars

Rent, Rates and Taxes

Repairs and mainienance

Printing and stationery

Postage, Telephone and Fax

Travelling & Conveyance

Directors fees, allowances and expenses
Legal and Professional charges

Business Promotion

Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

23. ltems that will not be reclassified to _prnﬁt or {oss

Particutars

Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive
Incorne

Total

Year Ended Year Ended
Marchr 31, 2024 March 3L, 2023
“Xin Lakhs Zin Lakhs
80,62 17099
1478 15.08
3.89 4.85
4,64 7.55
310 856
9.48
32.2% 5568
4.70 271
11.10 7.23
155.13 289.44
Year Ended Year Ended
Marchr 3, 2024 March 31, 2023
Tin Lakhs T in Lakhs
26.24 56.21
-159.54 133.03
{173.29}) 189.23

93



IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
Notes Lo fimaneial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amonnis arc in INR Lakhs unless othenwvise stated)

24

25

26

27

28

29

Payment to Auditors

Audit Fees

Certification and other services
Reimbursement of Expenses

Total

Details of corperate social responsibility expenditure

a) Gross amount required ¢o be spent by the company for respeetive fmancial year

b} Construction/acquisition of any assets
) Yet to be paid in cash
d) Anrount spent during the period -
- Development of Human Capital
- Development of Rural areas & sustainable development actvities
- Promoticn of sports
- Other welfare activities
- Corpus to the IFCI Social Foundation
- Admin & other expenses

Total

Contingent hiabilities and commitments {to the extent not provided for)
A. Contmgent Liabilities

{i) Claims not acknowledged as debis
(i) Bank Guarantees Provided
{iii) Guarantee/Letter of comfort Issued on behalf of third parties
{iv) Guarantee/Letter of comfort Issued on behalf of subsdiaries companies
{(v) Tax Matters :
Income Tax
GST

Total

B. Commitments

{i) Estimated amount of contract {including lease contract) remaining to be exceuted on capital

account (net of advances)
{ii) Undrawn Commitments

Tatal
Expenditure in Foreign Currencies:
Membership Fes and Subscription Fez
Import Factor Commiissicn

Others

Total

Earnings in Foreign Currency;

Famings in Fergign Currency

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

4.36 722
4.36 7.2%
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2623

NIL

N

Nit

Arrsar of Dividend on Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Prefe Shares 1s INR 6103.28 lakhs which has not been provided for as per sanction ferms & conditions.
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Notes to fmaneial statements for the vear vaded 31 March 2024
(Al amotnts oo in INR Lakhs unless niherwiser stuled)

30 Employer benefits
The Company aperates the follawing post-emplayment plans «

=

Defined contribution plan
The Company makes montbly coatsibution towards pensien swhich is a dellied eonteibution plan. The Conspany hus oo blizations oher thas 1 mske the specficd contributions, The conrbutions ats charged 1o the Statement of Prafit
and Lozs as they acerue. The amoumt recopttised as exprse towards sueh contribution are as fllows:

Far the year ended For e yrar cnded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Providest Fund and Family Pension Sohemos X 2535

3

Defined Benefit plan

A, Gratity
The Compary bas a defwed borofit grauity plan in India, govesared by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, This plaz enilles i sotgloyee, who has remdered 2t least fivo years of cuntiangs ssrvice, 1o gratity al B mis of fiftecn days
g for every sompleted year of servico or part thereaf i excess of six seaths (Maximurs Limit — Rs. 20,08,0004), besed om the rate of seagos bust dzawn by the employce sonpemed. - This defined worth plan expose (he Comparny
10 actuarin rishs, such as iangevity risk, curmency risk, interes! rate risk and markes (investment) risk,

The most recent setonrial valualicn of plan asscts and the mesent value of the defined benefic obligation for graluity weee camied ovl ps at 31 March 2024, The present valuc of the defined benefil obiigalions and the related current
serviee cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Crsdit Method.

Based on the pomarial valuateon oblained jn this respect, the fallowing table sets ool the stalus of the eratulty plan and the amotnis recopnised in the Company’s financiul slatemenls as at balancs sheet date:

Far the year cnded For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2043
Met defined bensfit Hability 5261 99.58
(b} Recongilistion of the net defined benelit fasset) / iiabilicy
The follawing bl shaws o recemiliation from the sponing batunces 1o tho olasing halarces [or et dofinied bonofit (asse) linbiliny and its components:
For the yeor ended 33 March 2024 For the yeor ended 31 March 2623
Delined benefit . et defined benolit X Net defimed benefit
abligation Fair vulue of plan asseds {asseepl Fablity Defincd benefit ob¥igation  Fair value of plan assets (nsset) bskiity
Balance et the beginning of the year 99.5¢ 2058 135,73 13573
Inctuded In profit or lass J E
Current service cast 6.2 632 £33 855
Past service eost including curtnilment Gains? ossca = 2
Interest cost (income) 731 731 9.72 972
13.63 = 13.63 1827 u 18.27
Included in Other comprebensive ineome
R loss (gaim)
~ Actuarial 105s {gain) arising from:
- demagraphic assmptions e = R B
- financial assumptipns 105 105 212 2.1
- cxperience ndfustment 442 442 307 3.07
— on plan assets B
547 - ST 835 - 0.35
Other
Contributions paid by the cmplover E
Benzits paid 23647 36,07} (55.37) (5337
i (36.07) - (36.07) (5537} - (55,37}
Balance st the end of the year R2.61 - 8261 90,58 - 99.59
ix) Plan asseis
For the year endeil For the year crded
31 Mareh 20214 31 March 2023
Investmcot NIL NIL
{d) Actuarial 1ssumptions
Principal htarial sssumy 1 the reporting date 4 as weighted averoges).
For the yrar ended For the yrar ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Biscount rato 123% 7349
Futers salery growdy 6.00% 600
Withdrawa] rate:
Up o 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 200% 200
Above 4 years 1.00% 1.00%
Retirmment Age (in yeary &0 60
Fxpeeted rate of relurn on plon axsars 0.00% 000%
Mortatity TALM (20122014 TALM (2022-2014)
0] itivity anatysis of

The falliwing table preseut a sousitvity anlysis (o onc of the relevant sotarial assumptios, Holdiag other wssumplions constwnt, showing hew the defined benellt abligation would have been aifected by changes i t= relevau nctsrisl
assumptions that were reasonsbly possible at the rporting date

&or tha year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 35 March 2023
Inerease Decrease Increase Decrease
Discoust rate (05044 movement) (4.62) 305 (3.56) .04
Future salary growth {0 50% movemenl} 301 {4.68) 609 (5.66)

Alihcigh tho snalysis does not teke wocount of the Fulldistrbution of cash Hows expested under the plan, it docs provide an epproximtion of the sensitivity of the ssswmiptions shown
v ity & withd matcrial & hence impact of chunne due to thess not calcalated.

@) Exproted matarity analysis of the defined benefit plags in fuure years

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2004 31 March 2023
1year 16% 662
Between 2-5 years 16.14 16.00
Bebween 546 years 103 127
Over & years 6173 7368
Tatal F2.61 99.58
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TFCI FACTORS LIMITED

Notes to financial statements lor the wear ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs unless otherwise staled)

(g) Diserention of risk exposures

Valuationy are buscd on cortaln assmptions, which = dyiie b afere tad sary orerfime. As such company
Sakiry Increases : Actual sabary increases will increase the Plan's

Investment Risk : I Plan is fuaded then assets |isbilities atismatch & aciual invesimenl retumm on essets lower than the discount rte 2ssumed ot the

s exposed to varions risks as Rallow —

ility. Increase in salasy incroase rate assumption in futere valuations will alsa irerease the Lability

Discount Rate : Reduction i discoual rale in subsequent vafuntions can fncrons: the plan's lsbility

Martabity & disability : Actual desths & dissbility enses proving Tower of highes than assumed ia the valuation can impact tho lsbiliies

Withdrawals = Acra! withdrawals proving Figher or Toster i assumed

B. Eamed Leave Lial

ty &nd Sick Lease Lizbility

d ehagge of withd;

Tales at

fast valuation date can impact the liability,

valuations cag impact Plan's liability,

Based on the actuarial valuatien obtained in this resperd, the following Wble sets oot the stius of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Compaty's fmancial stalements 25 at alagee sheet date

Net defined beuefit liability

(=) Funding

The funding requirements arc bassd ot the gratuity find's actaarial moasorement framewsrk sot ot in the fndi

difter from the

(b) Reconeiliation of the net deflne benefi (asset) / liability
lstion from the apening bulences ta the closing balances for net defined benefit (asvel) liability aid its compencals:

The following Lable shows

Far the year coded
3L March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

4947

TIGR

g policios of thy plan. The funding of the plan is based on 2 separate astiarial valustion For Risfing purposes for which the
sel Gl i Scotion T belaw. Emplayees do nol coatribute 1o the plan,

For Ihe year ended 31 March 2023

For the year ended 3§ March 2623

D‘:"']'l‘;‘; ':;':I“r" Fair value of plan assets “;:f:;;‘;:;‘";ﬁ' Trfined beefit obligation  Falr valae of plin assets N:::';?;“]‘{ ";f‘;ﬁ'
Balunce at the beginug of e year 7758 . I8 13154 E P18
Included in profit or loss
Currend servico cost 398 395 1.9 119
Tast serviee cost inzloding curtaiiment Gatns Tusses
Lneres cast 572 572 245 943
268 - 9.68 16.64 - 16.64
Inchuled in Other comprehensive inconis
Remoasurements loss (sin)
- Astuarial Joss (gain) arsing from:
- demographic ssnumptions E . E ]
e —— %1} 07l (1.63) (L43)
- experience adiustnent (3242 ©242) (55.53) (5553
- om plan assets 3 =
@10 = BL7D (E7.6) A 716y
Other
Comtributiss paid by the employer 3 =
Beasits paid 648) (6.43) (1349 (1345
[ N 16.48) (13.44) 7 (15.44)
Elunn =f the end of the year 4947 - 49.47 77.98 - 77.98

() Plaa nssets

Fliere wore 0o plan assets with the Campany w11 said post sstinvment mediea benfit plaa

Ot am annual basis, an asscl-liability mntching study is done by the Company wherchy the Company contributes ihe net incrstse in the actuarial Eabiliry 16 & restrioted flnd i order to mumege the Lisbility risk.
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(6) Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial p i the reporting d d ns weighted uverages)
For the year cnded For the yeas ended
31 Marel 2024 31 March 2623

Discount mic T23% Taaw
Funire modicel cost increnss 6.00% G.00%
Withdrawal rate:

Upto 30 years 3.00% 300%

From 31 Lo 44 years 2.00% 2.00%

Abave 44 years 1.00% 1.00%
Retirement Age (in year) L (1
Expectad rate of return on plan asscls B8 0.00%
Merialiry 100°% of IALM (2012 - 14) 100 % of IALM (2012 - 14}

(=} Senaitivity analysis of significant assursptions
Tha follawing table presentaa sesiisty anlysls to ane of the refovant aetuesial assumption, botding other ssumptions constant, showing hos the defined bertefit obligation monid have boen affecicd by changss in he relovant oetynsal
nssumptions that were reasonsbly possible al the peporting date.

Fur e year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Enerease Dacrease Inctease Decrease
Tiscount rete (1.50% mavemen) 3.06) 328 3 458
Futore salary growth (0.50% movement) 212 o8 3.08 @4l
Although the aoalysis docs not Ll Lof the full distribution of cash fl o uadez the plas, it dacs provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the sssumptions shows.

Sensitivitics 05 to mie of inllation, fate of increase sl penstons in paymenl, mte of increase of peasions befors retirmment & Lfe: oxpestancy are 0ot applicable

{0 Expected maturity analysis of die defined benefit plans n fature pears
¥or the year ended For the year eaded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Lyear 103 503
Between 2-5 yeurs 520 050
Betwemn 56 vears 071 103
Orer & yoars 42.53 al.02
Tolal 49.47 77.98

(g) Dixcreption of risk exposures
Valuafions ar=hased e cerlain assumpiions. which e dyrumic in naturs and sary over ime. As stich contpany is exposed o vurious sisks as How -

Medical Cost Inerease - ircronse in actual medical ¢ast per retizee will nerease the Plan's lishility, fnerease in medicel Cost per Retireo tate assumplion will alss inorease the Lizbitity.
Frvestment Risk : I Plan is funded thon assets lisbilities mismazch & actus] investment retunt on assols lower than the discount rate assumed. al the {ast valuiion date gan impact the lisbility,
Discount Rae = Reduction ia discount rate in subsequent valuations éan ingrease the plsa’s lisbiliy,

Mortafity & disabiity : Actua] deaths & disability cases prowing lowor o higher thes assumcd in the valustzon can impact the liabilities.

rates at sub suluations can impact Plan's tiability,

Withd  Actual ing higher ot bower then assumed withdrawals nd ehaoge of
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31 Related party disclosure

. Name of the refated party and nature of relationship:-

Ao Nature of Relationship
Holding

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Managerial Personoel

ii.  Related party transactions during the year and balance receivable from and payable fo related parties as af the balance sheet date:-

Name of the Related Party
IFCT Limited

IFCI Infrastrueture Development Limited
IFCI Financial Service Limited

IFCI Venture Capital Funds Limited
MPCON Limited

Stock Holding Corporation of India Limiled

Mr. Alan Savio Pacheco (Managing Director)

Mr. Smit Kumar (Company Secretary)

Mr. Chnrag Sapra (Chief Financial Officer) wef September 21, 2023
Mr. Manish Jain (Chief Financial Officer) upto September 20, 2023

o For fhe year ended For the year ended
d :
Name of related party Natare of transaction 31 March 2024 31 March 2025
A, Holding:
IFCT Linuted (I} Rem and Maintence Paid £1.48 166.24
(1) Loan Repayment/Conversion 1,900.00 -
{iii) Lean - Qutstanding - =
(iv) Interest Paid 62.04 -
(v) Reimbursement of Expenses
- Managerial Remuneration - 2532
- Others 11.72 12.91
- Commission against Letter of comfort to Banks - -
(vi) Salary Retfmbursement of employes deputed 117.67 43.87
B. Subsidisries:
IFCI Venture Capatal Fund Lid () Salary Reimbursement of employee deputed 25.40 18.65
(i) Interest paid = =
Stock Holding DMS Limited {I) Rent Paid 1.55 0.86
TFCT Infrastructure Development Limited (i) Salary Reimbursement of employee deputed 12.64 -
C  KeyM ial Personmel : Managerial renumeration
M, Alan Savio Pacheco (Managing Director)
Mr. Smit Kumar (CS)
Mr. Manish Jain CFO (up te Sepl 23)
Mr. Chirag Sapre CFO {wef Sept 23)
{a) Comp iont of key gerial personnel
Shert-term employee benafits Mamish Jain(up to Sep 2023) 11.97 23.59
Shori-term centractual benefits Smit Kumar 5.40 540
Total 17.37 28.99

*Paid for 6 Month for Bikas Kanti Roy
Terms and condifions

All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis_
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32 Leases

A, Lease as lessee

The Company has entered into short 1em lease agreement al one center, The leases typically ren for 2 pericd of 11 months, with an option fo renew the lease aitor thal peried. Lease payments are

rencgotiated on regular intervals to refleel market rentals,

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
83.03 I67.0

iil. Amopunts recopaised in profit or loss

During the year cndod 31 Merch 2024, rantal expenses of T 83.03 Lakhs (31 March 2023: % 167.] Lakhs) have been recognised in siatement of profit and loss account -

33 Earnings per share (EPS)

For the year cnded

For the year ended

icul .
Barticulars Uioita 31 March 2074 31 March 2023
i (@ ProfiLC ion for Equity sk
Net profit as per Statentent of Profit & Loss % in Lakhs (8,793.91) (421.83)
Less: Prefercnce Dividend
Net profit auributable to Equity Sharcholders Tin Lakhs {8,793.91) (421.83)
(1) Weighted Average Number of Equily Shares outstanding Mos 2,794.39 2,79439
i (@ ProfitComputation for Equily sharchol Ioding potental shareholders)
Net profit as per Staterment of Profil & Loss 2 in Lakhs (8.793.91) {421.83)
Less: Preference dividend
Net profit attributable 1o cquity sharcholders fincluding polential sharcholders)* 2 in Lakhs (8%,792.91) (421.83)
() Weighted Average Nusber of Equity Shares outstanding Nos 2,794.39 279439
Eeminps Per Sharz
(Weighted Average)
Basic H (3.15) 015
Diluted L (315) (0.15)

* There are no potential equity shares outstanding as on March 31, 2024,

34 Ason March 31, 2024 there were no cvents or changes in circumstanges which indicate any impairment in the assets ag defined by Ind AS 36 -

35 Operating segments

The Board of the Company has been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Meker (CODM) as defined by Ind AS 108, “Operating Segmeals.” The Company's operaling segments are established in
the manngr consisient with the components of the Company thet are evaluated regularly by the Chief Opevating Decision Maker as defined in ‘Tnd AS 108 -

primarily in the business of financing and there ote no separate reportable sepments as per Ind AS 108.
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Notes to firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amoumts are in INR 1,akhs unless otherwise staled)

36 Transfers of financial assets

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into transactions that result in the transfer of loans and advances. In accordance with the
accounting policy set out in Note 2, the transferred financial assets continue to be recognised in their entirety or 1o the extent of the Company's
continuing invelvement, or are derecognised in their entirety.

The Company transfers financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety are primarily through the sale of NPA loans to asset reconsiruction
companies (ARCs)

A. Transferred financial assets that are nol derecognised in their entirety
Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstraction companies (ARCs)

Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstrction companies (ARCs)' are transactions in which the Company sells loan and advances to an uncensolidated
special vehiele and simultancously pucchases the majority portion of security receipts issued by said vehicle. The security receipts are collateralised by
the leans purchased by the vehicle and hence the cash flow of the security receipts is dependent on the recovery of purchased [oans,

The Company continues to recognise that part of the loans in their entirety against which security receipts have been subscribed by the Company
because it retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of owrership w.r.t that part of the transferred toan. The part of loan transferred against

which cash consideration is received is derecopnised.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts and fair values of alf financial assets transferred that are not derecognised in their entirety and
associated liabilities.

Financial assets at amorijsed
cost

Loans and advances to
customers

For the vear ended 31 March 2024

(i} Assets

Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstruction companies (ARCs)
Carrying amount of assets N

Associated liabilities

Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstruction companics (ARCs)
Carrying amount of associated liabilities =

(i} For those liabilities that have recourse oitly to the transferred financial assets
Assets

Sale of NPA toans to asset reconstruction companses (ARCs) -
Fair value of assets =

Associated liabilities

Sale of NPA loans to asset recoastruction compatics (ARCs) =
Fair value of assuciated liabilities B

Far the year ended 31 March 2023

(i) Assets

Sale of NPA Joans to asset reconstruction companies (ARCs) =
Carrying amount of assets =

Associated liabilities

Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstruction cempanies (ARCs) =
Carrying ameunt of assaciated liabilities =
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(ii) For those liabilities that have recourse only to the fransferred financial assets

Assels

Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstruction companics (ARCs)
Fair value of assets

Associated liabilities

Sale of NPA loans to asset reconstruction companies {ARCs)
Fair value of associated liabilities
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Notes to financial statements for the venr ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts ave in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
37 Financial instruments - fair value and risk management
A. Finaocial instruments by categary

‘Tie Following Lable shows the earrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabitics.

For the yrar ended 31 March 2024

Particluars FVTEL FVTOCI A“':;:t“e"
Financiel assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 31.94
Bank balance other than above =
Loans 907.09
Investments 93443
Other financial assets 25.92
- 934.43 964,95
Financial Kabilities:
Debt securitics -
Borrowings {other than debt securities) -
Other financial lirbilities 239.20
- - 239.29
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Partichaars FVTPL FVTOCT Amartised
cost
Firancial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 13,153.12
Bank balance other than above -
Loans 264350
Investments 1,070.58
Other financial assels 253.86
- 1,070.58 16,050.47
Financial liabilities:
Dbt securnities 14,107 88
Borrowings (cther than debt securitics) -
Other financial Labilitias 1,294.25
- - 15,402.13

=

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the jud, and esti made in d ining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
(2) recognised and measured at fair vahie and

(b} measured at amortised cost and for which fair valucs are disclosed in the financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in delermining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instraments into the threa levels preseribed under the accounting
standard. An explanation of each level foliows undemuath the table.

Financial assets azd liabilities measured at fair value - Tecurring fair value messurements

For the year ended 31 Mareh 2024

Level ] Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Investments 93443 834,43
- - 934.43 934.43
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
For the year ended 31 March 2024 Aumortised cost Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalems 3154 31.54 31.94
Bank balance other than above - - -
Loans 907.09 967.00 907.09
Investments 7 =l S
Other financial assefs 25.92 25.92 25.92
064.95 - - 964.95 964.95
TFinancial liabilities:
Trade payables - - -
Debt securitics = = =
Borrowings (other than debt securties) - - -
Subordinated labilities - - -
Other financial lizbilities 23929 239.39 239.29
139.2% - - 235.29 239.29
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Financial assets and Tiabilities measured at fair valac - vecurring fair value measerements

For the year eaded 31 March 2023

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Taotal
Financial assets:
Derivative financial instruments - -
Tnvestments 1,670.58 1.070.58
- - 1,070.58 1,070.58
Financial liabifities:
Derivative financial istruments -~ -
Assets and linbilitics which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
Far the year ended 31 March 2 Amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 13,153.12 13,153.12 13,153.12
Bank baiance other than above = B o
Loans 2,643.50 2,643.50 2,643.50
Other financial assets 253.86 25386 253.86
16,050.47 - - 16,050,447 16,050.47
Financial lisbifities:
Debl sccurities 14,107.88 14,107 83 14,107.83
Borrowings {other than debt securities) - - -
Other financial liabilities 1,204.25 1,294.25 1,294.25
15402.53 - - 15,402,13 15,402.13

Valuation framewnrk

“Tke finaoce department of the group includes a team fhat performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporing purposes, including level 3 fair values. This team
reports directly go the chief financial officer (CFQ)) and the audit commitice (AC). D ions of valuation | and resuits are huld between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at least once
every three manths, in line with the group's quarterly reporting periods. Spesific controls include -

- verification of observable pricing

- re-performance of mods! valuations

- review and approval process for new models and chages to models

- review of significant unabservable imputs, valuation adjustments and significant changes to the fair value measurement of Level 3 instruments

The Company measures fair valres using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or Habilities

Lovel 2 : The fair value of financiz] instruments that are not traded in active markets is determingd using valuation techniques which maximize the use of cbservable masket data either direetly or
indirccily, such as quoted prices for similar asscts and liabilitics in active markets, for substantially the fuli term of the finaneial instrument but do not qualify as Level | imputs. If all significant
fupats required te fair value an imstrument are observable the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3 - IF one or more of the significant mputs is not based in observable market data, the instruments 3 included in lovel 3. That is, Level 3 inputs incorporate market participants’ assumptions
about risk and the risk premiuem required by markes participants in order to bear that risk, The Bank develops Level 3 inputs based on the best information available in the circumstances.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash fow models. Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techriques inglude risk-free and benehmark interest rates, eredit spreads
and other premium used in cstimating discount rates and expeclod price volatilities and correlations.

The objective of valuation techniques 13 b arrive at 3 fair value measurement that teflects the price that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the ligbility in an orderly transaction
batween macket participants at the measurement date.
The Company uses widely recognised valuation models to determine the fair value of commen and simple financial instruments, that use onfy cbservable macket data and require little management

Judgement and zstimatios. Observable prices or model inputs are usnally available i the market for OTC derivatives such as forward rate apresments. The availability of observable market prices
and mode! inputs Teduces the need for management judgernent and estimation and also reduces the ini inted with d ining fair values.

Finaveial instruments yalued at carrying valuc

The respective carrying values of certain on-balance shect financial instruments approximated their £2i5 value. These financial instruments include cash in hand, balances with other banks, trade
receivables, trade payables and ceriain other financiai assets and Tiabilities. Carrying values wers assumed to approximate fair vahies for these financial instruments as they are shori-lerm in nature
and their recorded amounts approximate fair valucs or are receivable or payable on demand.
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38 Financhl Hsk manngement
The Company's activities exposure il o credit risk, lignidity risk, markel risk and operaticnal visk
A, Risk management framen ork :

The (.ompany 5 board ul‘ dirertors has overell responsibility for the establishment and oversighl of the Company”s risk management framework, The boerd of diteciors has eswablished the risk mansgement ecimmittee, which is

e for yping ant itoring the Company™s tisk management poticies. The committee reports regulatly to the board of direciars i its retivities.
Efficicnt and fimely mansgement of risks involved in the Company's aclivilies is eritical for the financisl soundness and profitability of the Campany. Risk involves the i i and managing
of risks on & regulor besis, The objective of tisk management is 1o increasc sharcholders’ value and achicva a retumn en cquify that is commensurate with the risks assumed, To achieve this objeclive, the Company employs lesding
risk management practices and ecrujts skillad and experi peaple

The Company’s visk manpgement policies are established to identify and analyss the risks [szed by tie Company, to set appropriate risk Jimils and controls and to menitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and

systemns are reviewed repularly to reflect l:hnnga& in matkel conditions and the Company’s activilies. The Company, Ihrougk its {raining and standrrds and dnres, aims Lo mainain a disciplined and eonstructive
oontzol envi in whith all empley d {heir roles and oblj;
The Company™s audit ittee oversets how i OTTHOES i with the Company's risk manageatent policies and proceduiss, and reviews the adeqoney of the nisk management framework ia relation 1o the nsks

facad by (e Company. The audit commitice is assisted in its oversight rofe by inernal audil, Imemal audit wndertakes both regutar end ad hos reviews of risk mobegement contrels mnd procedures, e results of which are reported
Lo he audi! comunittee.

B. Credit sk

Credit risk anses from loans and edvances, cash ond cash equi 1 in debt iies and deposits with banks and linancial institutions 2nd any other financis! assets.
Credil nisk 15 Lhe Tisk of financial loss to the Company 1f & customer ¢f counterparly to o fnancial mstrment fails o meel its coniractual oblipations, and arses principally from the Company's sss¢l on finance and trade recaivables
from customers, loans snd investments i debt secuntics.

The carrying amounts of finapcial assets reprosent the maximum credit risk exposure

8} Credit risk management
The Company’s exposere: lo credit nisk is inflacaced marrdy by the imdividual characterstics of cach customer, However, management also corniders the faclors that may milucnce the credit risk of ils customer base, nchiding the
default risk associated with the mdustry. A financial assct 18 “credit-impaired” when one or more events that have & detrimental impact on the eslimated fulure eash Qows of the financial assct have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset 13 eredit-pmpaired includes the following ebscrvable data:

nificant financial difficulty of the barrower or issuar,

» a breach of contract such as a defzult or past dus event,

+ the restrueturing of 1 Joan ar advance by the Company on lerms that the Company would nol consider olharwise; o

* 1t is becoming probzhle that (he harrawer will enter bankruptey or other financial ro-organizaliom,

The risk ittes has esteblished a cradit policy umder which cach new customer is analyzcd individually for credit worhiness befare the Company’s standard payment ard delivery torms and conditions are offered.
The Company’s reyiew includes external ratings, if they are available, backeround verification, financial slalemels, income lax returns, oredit agenty informatian, industry (nformation, etc. Credit limils are eslablished for sach
sustomer and reviewed guarterly. Any loan excacding those Himits require approval from the risk management commiliee.

b3 Brobablity of defalul (BD)
Tntermal ratimg i3 the yrimary iapuL into the determination of the term structure of BT for exposures. The Comypany colleets performance and default information about its credit risk enposures analysed by jusisdictions or region and
type of product or borwer.

The Company employs statistical models (o anelyse the dala collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PL> of exposures and how these are expected Lo change as 2 result of passage of ume.

¢} Definition of defaylt and cure

The Company considers a financial instrumen defaulted and (herefore Stage 3 (eredil-impaired) (or ECL calculalions mn all cases when the borrower 15 mied s cither 9 or 10

The Company corsiders probability of defoult npon intial recogition of asset and whether thers has been any significant increase in credit risk on an ongoung basis throughout ¢ach reponting pened. 1o assess whether there isa
significent increase 1n credit nsk (he Company comptres the nisk of defoult oceurming on the asset a5 at the reporting date with the risk of definltas at the date of initial secopmitivn. It considers available rtasonable and supportive
farwerd-looking inforation. Following indicalers tre incorparated:

- Internal ralings as on cach reporting dale

- actun] or expected significant adverse changes in business, fimancial or etonomic condition that are expecied to cause a significent chang: 1o borrower's ability 16 meet its obligations.

ificanl increase in eredit risk on other financial instruments of same borrower

feant changes in value of the collateral supporting tee cbligation or in the quality of third asty guaranless or tredit colmeements,

nificant changes in expected performance and behavior of Ih borrower ingluding changes in paymest status ol borrowers snd changes in operating results.

Macrosconamic information (such as regulmory changes, maskel inkesest rate or prowth mates} is incorporated as part of the internal rating madel. In general, it is presumed that credit risk has sipnificantly increased sinee inital
recopnition if the paymenls ate more than 30 davs post due.

L is the Company's policy to consider a financial instrumend as “cured” and (herefore reclassificd out of Stape 3 when nome of the default criteria have been presenl for at least six consecutive months. The decision whelher (o
classify an asset as Stage 2 or Stape | oace cured depends on the updated cradil grade, sl the lime of the cure, and whether this indicates (here has been & significant increase in eredil risk compered Lo initial recognition.

3 Exposure ar default (EAD}

The uxposure ot default (EAD) reprasents the pross camying ameunt of the financial jnstruments subject to the impairment calculstion, addressing both the cHent's ablity to increase its exposure while approaching default and
patential enrty repayments joo.

To calenlats the EAD for a Stage | loan, the Company assssses the possible defmult events within 12 months for the caleulabion of the 12mECL. However, if a Stage { loan thal is expected to default 1n the 12 months from the
balance sheet date and 15 also expected to cure and subssquently defautt zgain, then ail linked defanlt evenls are taken inlo acconnt For Stage 2, Stage 3 and POC finencial assets, the exposure at default is considered [or events
over the Lifetime of the instruments.

The Company determines EADs by madelling the yangs of possitie exposire gutcomes at various paints in fime, corresponding, the multiple scenarios. The Ind AS 109 EDs ore then assigned to each econamir scenarto based o the
outcaiie of Company's moedels.

) Loss glven default (LGD}
Recovery pattenn for the last 18 year of the Company from the reporting date js used to calonlate TGD. The Company evaluales all the Ioans these are dofandted and closed in the last 10 years for recovery efliciency ard accordingly
caloulates the LG for the Company.

1) Significant increase in credit risk

The Group eontinuansly monilors all assels subject to ECLs. Tn order fo determine whelhor an insirument ar & portfokio of insiruments is subjeet to 12 months ECL or B time ECL, the Group asscsses whelker there has bean a
significzmt fncrease in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group also applies 2 ve method for triggering & signifieant increase in credil risk for an asset, such a3 moving a customer/facility to the watch List, or
the account becoming forborme. Regardless of the change in credit grades, iE mting is dcgmdcd by more than 3 basis points, the credit risk is deemed to have increased sipnilficanily since initial recopilion.

g} Provision for ¢cxpected credit losses
The Company™s exposure to credit risk for asset on flnance, trade receivables and other financial assets by tvpe of counterparty is as follows.

For the year ended
31 March 2024
Stage1 Siage2 Stage 3 roci Tatal

Loans and advances at amordised cost
Grade 1-6 : Low-{air risk 444,64 44464
Grade 7-8 - Highar nsk = -
Grade 9-10 - Loss 92745 92745

444 64 - 92745 - 13109
Loss allowance
Carrying value 444,64 - 927.45 2 131248
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For the year eaded
31 Merch 2023
Stage | Stage 2 Slage 3 FOCI Total

Loans and advances et nmeriised cost
Grade 1-6 : Low-fair i 994,30 90430
Grade 7-8 - Higher risk - -
Grade -10 : Loss 32643.73 32,643.73

994.30 - 32,643.73 = 33,638.03
Loss allowance -
Cerrying ralee 954,30 = 3%,543.73 - 33,638.03

The Company hirs 2plied a three.stags approaeh to measuns cxpected cradit losses {ECLY an Toans aceonted [ al entottissd post and FYOCT, Tass sates ans calculated using past trend of Pive years.

(a} Stuge (- 12- months ECL: For exposures where there is no significant incrézse in credit sk sinee initia] rcogmilion and Ihel arc not credil-impaired npon erigination, the portion of the lifefime ECL pssociated with the
probability of default events occurring withan Ihe next 12- months is recognized.
(b) Stage 2: Lifetime ECL, not eredit-impaired: For eradit exposurcs wher: there has been a significant incrense in credil risk since initial recogaition i are Rot credit-impaired, a Hifetime ECL is recopnized.

{c} Stape ¥ Lifetime BCL, eredit-irapaired: Finzneinl assels asc assessed a5 credit impaired npan ocourrence of one or more events that have & detrimental impact on the estimated future cash Mlows of that asset. For financial ssets
Dhat have bocome credil-impaircd, & lifetime ECL is recagnized and interest reveone is calrulated by applying the offective interest rate to the amartised cost

At each reporting date, (he Company assesses whether there has been a significant tocrease in credit sk of fis financiz] assels since inilial recognition oy comparing the risk of defoult ocewrring over the expectad life of the essel. In
detarininirg whether credil risk has ncrcased significantly since initisl recognition, the Company wses information that is relevanl and available withoul undue cost or effori This includes [he Company’s internal tredit rating
grading system, exizmal nsk ralings end forward-looking infe L deterioration in credii quality of & financhal asset.

Cash and cnsk equivalents

The Company halds cash and cash equivalents of INR 31,93 Lakis at 31 Morch 2024 (31 March 2023: INR 13153.12 Lakhs). The cush and cash aquivalents ane heid with bank and fimaneral institution counterperties, which are
rated AA- lo AA+ ralings.

Jrapairmend on cash and cash cquivaleats has been measured on the 1 2-mondh expected loss basis and reflects the shoct matorities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and ash equivalents have low credil risk
based on the extemel credi ralings ol Gie cowterparties.

The Cempany wses a similar approsch for essessment of ECLs for cash and cash cgnivalents as usad for dety securities.
k) Collateral held and otber credit enhoncements

The company’s foans are generally securcd fy a charge on the asset financed (vehicle loans. property leans apd loans apainst gold and scourilics). Loans arc secured with current assets as well as immovable property and fixed asseis
in some cases.

Colinteral securing cach individual lozm mey not be adequate in relation o the value oF the loan. AN borrowers musl meet the comnany's inlemal credit assessment. procedures, regardless of whethes the loan is sacured. In addition to
(he collatera) stated sbove, the company holds other fypes of collateral such a5 second charges and floating charges for which specific values are generally not available.

The following Lable sets out the pringipal types of collateral held against diffcrent types of Gnancial essets.

Matimum ezposare {0 Bank aud governmient

As at March 31, 2024 credit plsk Securties Tangible nssels Tolul Collaiera) Net Expoiure
Loans and advances 907.09 = 26495 4214 907,09 -
“Total financial assets at amortisel 507.09 S 26495 64214 907,09 =
<ost

As at Murch 31, 2023 e Securtles B e R Tangible assets Total Collateral Net Exposure
Loans and advances 2,643.50 - 263.59 2,319 2543.50 .
Total fiaancial asse2s of amortised 260350 = 263.59 25731 2,643.50 -
vost
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€ Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will enconnter difliculry in mecting, the obligotions assooiates with fts foascial liabilities that are seied by delivering cash oy anther finaocial asset. The Company's approsch to tanaging liquidity is to
ensure, s for og possible, that ft wil have sufficient liquidity 1o meel its lizbiliEcs when they are duc, undes both normal and stressed conditions, withoul incuimag wnaceeptable losses of risking damags lo the Conpamy's reputation. The Campany uses
activity-basad costing to costiis products and serviees, which assisis il in monituring cash Sow requircments and apfimising its cash refum on investments,

Baposure to Tiguidity risk
The following nre the mmaining corlmetmal oisturitics of fisancial Inbilities al the reporting date. The smovsl are gross and undiscounted, and include cantrastus] interest payzoests and exchude the impact of naming agreanrents,

Contractual eash Hows
Gross
For the yoar ended 31 March 2024 ominal
Carrying amount ot & month or lesx 6-12 months 1-Eyears 2.5 years More than 5 years
{ouillow)
Non- derivative financiol Eablities
Borawings 5 = = = B
Nen-derivative Financial assofs
Cish and cush equivalents 3194 3194 3194
Back balances other than cash and cash squivalsst - - -
Loans 907.09 907.00 - - - 907,09
Investmen securitics 93443 934.43 934.43
Contractual casit flows
Gross
For the year ended 31 March 2023 . nominal
Carrying smount anar & moustls or fess 611 months 12 yearx 2-Syears Mare fhian § years
foutflow)
Non - derivative financial lisbititles
Borrawings 14,107 88 14,107 .88 171309 . 1579037
Non-derfvative financal assets
Cash and cash cqoivalents 1505512 13,153.12 13,153.12
Baak balnces other sau cash wnd eask squivalent . = h
Los 2633.30 2,643.50 28358 235952
Invastnient securities Lo70.58 1070.58 1,070.58
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D.

i

0}

Marler risk

Market the sisk that the fair vakug or fiture cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuale due 1o changes in market variables such as inlerest rates, forcign exchange raies and equity prices. The
Company classifies exposurcs 1o market fisk inla cither treding or nor—trading portfelios and manages each of those portfolios separately. Such risks the markes risk for the trading portblic is managed
and monitered hased on & YaR methodology that reflects the interdependency benwveen risk variables, Non-trading positions are managed and monitored using other sensitivity annlyses. All such
transaciions are carried out within the guidelines set by Lhe Risk Management Commities

The following table sets aul the allocation of assets and liabilities subject 1o markel risk between trding and non-trading portfalios :

Market risk measure

" " . Non-trading
Carrying amount  Trading portfolios portfulias

As at 31 March 2024
Assels subject o market risk
Cash and cash equivalents 3194 - 3184
Bauk balance other than ahove L - -
Loans 207,09 - 507.09
Investments 934,43 = 934,43
Other financial assets 25.92 - 25.92

1,899.37 - 1L 299.37

Liahilitics subject to market risk

Debt secunities - - -

Borrowings (ather than det seeurities) - - -

Other ficancial liabiiftics 235.29 - 23929
139.29 - 23929

As af 31 March 2823

Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 13,153.12 - 13,153.12
Bank batance otlier than above = = o
Loans 2.643.50 - 2,643.50
Investments 1,070.58 - 1.070.58
Qther financial assets 233.86 - 253.86
17,121.64 - TA21.04
=
Financial liabilifies:
Debl securitics. 14,107.88 = 14,107.88
Bomowings {olher than debt securities) - - -
Other financial linbilities 129425 - 1,294.25
15402.13 - 1540213

WEariet risk - Non-trading portfolios
Interest rate risk

Exposure to interesi yote risk
The interest rate prefils of the Company's interest-bearing financial instrumicnts as reperted to the management is as follows:

Particulars F1 blarch 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed rate instruments

Financial assels 07.09 2,643.50
Financial Jabilitics - 14,107.88

Variable rate instruments
Financin! essels
Financia! liahilitics 5 o

Operatioral Risk

Operational
Operational risk is the exposure o loss resuiting from inadequale or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from external events, The Company bas clearly defined cperations procedures for cach
ef its products and services. It also has advanced compuler systems thel enable it o run operations with speed and accuracy.

The i risk e operates inds dently from other units of the Company and reports directly to the Audit Comminee, which consists of members of the Board, It condusts Tegular reviews
of all business areas of the Company and reports centrol deficiencies and exceptions to the Company's policies and procedures. It alse recommends measures to mitigate cperational sisk, which an:
P by immediafel

The Company also has & sontingency plan e take care of any failure of its computer systems. Regular backups are made for all impornam datasets, and stored outside the Company's premises. This ensures
thel in case of any sysiem failure, the Company will be able to continue ils operations without losing critical data or business iransactions. As pan of jts disasier recavery pian, the Company has
cslablished 2 back-up site which would and operate during an emerpency.

The Company has 4 specific Busincss Continuity Plan {"BCP"} wnit. The main objective of the BCP is to ensure that in the event of full or parfial disaster, |kc Company should be able o continue
providing casential services to custemers, minimizing any adverse effects on the Comparry's business, through business impact analysis, Susiness restoration plans and procedures, for the identified critieal
fnctions.

The Company is using an operational risk management sohution for mouitoring operational risk, conducting risk and control self and ing operational logs data,
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3% Capital management
The Company mamsains an actively managed capital base 1 cover risks inherent in the business and is mieeling the capital adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of India {RBI} of India.
The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored using, among ather measures, the regulations issued by RBI.
The Company has complied m filf with all its externally imposed capital requirements over the reported period,

The primary chjectives of the Company’s capital managerent policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed <apilal
and healihy capital retios in order to support its business and o maximise shareholder value.

g and maintains strong credit ratings

The Company manages ils capilal structure and makes adjustments Io it according 1o changes in econotic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities, In order 1o maintain or adjust
the capital stuclure, the Company may adjust the amounl of dividend peyment to sharehclders, retum capital 1o shareholders or issue capital securilies. No changes have been made 1o the
ckjectives, policies and processes from the previous years. Howaver, they are under constant review Dy the Board.

i. Regulatory capital
The Company's regulatery capital consists of the sum of the following elements

- Cormmon equity Tier 1 (CET1) capilal, which includes ordinary share capital, realetd share premiums, retained eamnings and reserves afler adjustment for dividend declared and deduction for
goodwill, imangible assets and other reguiatery adjustments relating to items that are ot included in equity bul are freated diferemly for capital adequacy puposes.

- Tier 2 capital, which includes preference shares, qualifying subordinated liabililies and any excess ol irpairment over expected losses.

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Comaton equity Tier 1 (CETT) capital

Ordinary share capital 27.943.89 27.943.89
Share premium 1,008 20 1.008.20
Retained earnings (29,159.70) (20,193.16)
Other reserves 1,599.37 1,600.03
Deductions:
I[ntangible assets (6.98) {9.73)
Defeered tax other than temporary dilfernces - {8,637.51)
Prepaid Expenses {4.44) (6.22)
1,380.34 1,705.50
Tier 2 capital instruments
PDI - =
Provigion agains| Standard Assets 28324 40.51
283.24 40.31
Total reguiatory capital 1,663.58 1,746.01
Risk weighted assels 1.947.17 4,070.41
CRAR (%) 85.44% 42 90%
CRAR -Tier [ Capital {%} 70.89% 41.90%
CRAR -Tier 11 Capital (%) [4.55% 1.60%

ii. Capital allocation
Menagement uses regulalery capital ralios to monilor its capitel base. The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large extent, driven by optimisation of the
return achieved on the capilal aliocated. The amount of capital allocated 1o each oparation or activity is based primarily on ragulatory capital requiremants, bul in some cases the regulatory
requirements do not fully rellect the varying degree of risk associated with different activities. Tn such cases, the capilal requirerments may be flexed Lo reflect differing risk profiles, subject to
the overall level of capital to support 2 particular operation or activity not falling below the minimum Fequired for regutatory purposes, The process of allocating capital to specilic operations
and agfivities is undertaken independently of hose responsible for the operation by Company Risk and Company Credit, and is subject to review by the Company Asset and Liability
Management Commitiee {ALCO).

Although maximisatior of the retum en visk-adjusted eapital is the principal basis used in determining how capital is allocated within (ke Company to particular opsrations or activities, it is not
the sole basis used for decision making, Account is alse taken of synergies with other operations and aclivities, the availabilily of management and other resources, and the fit of the achvity
with the Company’s longer-term strategic objectives. The Company’s policies in respect of capital n and aflocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors,
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i

{ii}
(i)

(iv}

(v

(vi)

The fallowing additional fnformation is disclosed in terms of RBI Circulars applicable to N

king Financia) C

Certificated of Registration ne. a3 issued by Reserve Bank of India - B-14.01248

No penalty hes been imposed by RBI and any other reguintors during (he vear.
Ratings assigned by credil rating agencies and migration of ratings during the period ended March, 2024
Long Term (B

CARE B; Negalive (e e B,
CARE Ouilook: Negative)

Long Term Non-Convertible Debentures

BWR BB : Pronounced BWR BB
{Outlook Stable)

Brickwork NA

CARE BB; Negative {Doubls B;

ARE
c R Quitlaok: Negative)

Disclosures relating to Costomer Complaints

a) of complaints pending at the beginning of the period - B
D) No. ol complaints received during the peried = =
c) Mo. of complaints redressed during the period = E

d) Mo. of complainls pending al the end of the period = =

Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)

{a)  Capitel to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR) 25 44% 42.90%
3] Core CRAR 70.89% 41.90%
(i)  Supplementary CRAR 14.55% 1.00%

(by  Subordinated debt raised, oulstanding as Tier 11 Capital 5 B
{¢)  Risk-weighted assets 194717 407041
) On-Balance Sheet Items Lad717 407041
(i)  Of-Balance Shest ltems F =

Loans and advances availed, inclusive of interest accrued Liereon but nov paid:

{a)  Debentures:

@ Seewed = 445257
()  Unseoured . 10,761.48
() Deferred Credits

i) Term Loans N .
(dy  Inter Comporale loans & borrowing

@ CBLO/ Commereial Paper

0 Other Loans {Cash Credit and Overdraft)
© Funds placed with IFCI

) Bonds

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues io any financial institufion or bank or bond/ debenture holders.
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(i)

(viii)

(%)

=}

i)

tnvestor group wise classification of all invesiments (Corrent & Long Term) in shares and securities (both Quoted & Unquoted)

31-Mar-24 3hMar-23
Categor Y
¥ vy oo IR e
Related Parties V
(@  Subsidiaries . = = .
(b}  Companies in same group - - b -
{c) Joinl Veature - - _ .
(d) Ciher than Related Partics 934.43 934.43 1,070,538 1,070.58
Total 934.43 934.43 1,070.58 1,070.53
Details of investment and iovement in provision
Particulars 3i-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
A} Value of Investment in India o
Provisions [or Depreciation
Net Yalue of lnvestmenls 934 43 L.070.58
B)  Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
0] Opening balance
(i}  Add: Provisions made during the year = E
(i)  Less: Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year - _
(iv) _ Closing balance = -
Particolars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Leased Assels and stock on hire and other assels counting lowards Loan activities - -
Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed:
Category 31-Mar-24 3i-Mar-23
1 Related Penics
[CY) Subsidiaries
) Companies in same group
z Other than Relaled Parties 907.09 2,643,50
Total 07.09 2,643.50
Amount is net of provision aganst non-performing &nd standard restructured assets
Detaits of Single Borrower Limit - exceeded
by the NBFC an the basis of Gross Exposure
SNo Cancern Name ;']"_‘:;a?_"z‘;‘z‘;“di“g “ofowaed funds  Totsl Oulstanding 31-Mar2023  %of owned fands
1 PAN INDIA INFRAPROIECTS PRIVATE LIMITED G58.0 47.67% 658.01 40.50%
2 SHRIRAM EPC LIMITED £45.0 32.24% 711.00 A4%
3 ADIGEAR INTERNATIONAL 636.78 39.58%
4 AMAR REMEDIES 180179 111.99%
5 APEX BUILDSYS LIMITED 1501.24 93.31%
& ARCHON ENGICON PVT. LTD. 1225.65 76.43%
7 ARVIND CASTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED 500.00 31.08%
8 CONCAST STEEL & POWER LIMITED 2500.00 155.35%
9 ELDER PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED 1495.27 92.19%
10 ERA INFRA ENGINEERING LIMITED - SB 1500.22 93.25%
11 GANGOTRI IRCON & STEEL CO. LIMITED 640,39 39.80%
12 GEI INDUSTRIAL SYSTEMS LTD. 1479.82 91.98%
13 INNOVENTIVE INDUSTRIES LIMITED 837.52 52.06%
14 JAY POLYCHEM INDIA LIMITED 739.39 45.96%
15 KALYANI ENGINEERING WORKS 67292 41.83%
16 KEW INDUSTRIES LIMITED - SB 788.40 £9.00%
17 LEEWAY LOGISTIC LTD. 1284.66 79.85%
18 MARGDARSHAK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED 448.57 27.91%
19 MAXX MOBLINK PRIVATE LIMITED 1165.59 72.45%
20 MULTI-FLEX LAMI-PRINT LTD. 548.25 24.08%
21 MVL LIMITED 1150.77 71.53%
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{xii)

(i)

(xiv}

(xv)

{xvi)

(zviiy

22 NAVAXARNATAKA STEELS PVT. LTD,

23 NAVRANG ROADLINES PRIVATE LIMITED

24 NET 4 COMMUNICATIONS LTD.

25 OVERNITE EXPRESS LIMITED

26 SHIVA UDYODG A/C

27 SHREESHYAM PULP AND BOARD MILL LIMITED
28 SPANCO LIMITED

29 UNILEC ENGINEERS LIMITED

30 VNR INFRASTRUCTURES LIMITED

837.53
800.00
1336.79
575.57
533.35
935.83
546.93
490.1¢

1801.59

52.06%
55.94%
$3.09%
35.78%
33.15%
58.35%
34.00%
30.46%

111.98%

Details of Group Borrewer Limit - exceeded by the NBFC on the basis of Gruss Exposure

Total Qutstanding 31-Mar-2024

Total Quistanding 31 -Mar-2023

Group Name
(@ Loan Tolsl Ouistanding
(b}  %of ovmed funds
() Investment ontstanding
@) % ol owned funds
{€) Total Exposure
(f) % of owoed funds

Cancentrition of Advances

Total Qutstanding 31-Mar-2024

Total Dutstanding 31-Mar-2023

Total Advances ta top twenly largest borrowers / custoners

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers / custonrers

1,372.09

100.00%

24.624.18

74.19%

Coneentration of Exposurcs

Tatal Qutstanding 31-Mar-2024

Total Dutstanding 31-Mar-2023

Total Exposure to top lwenty largest Somowers / custoniers

Percentage of Exposures to top (wenty largest borrowers / customners o Tatal Exposure of the NBFC on bortowers / customers

137209

100.00%

2462418

T19%

Coneenteation of NFAs

Total Qutstandizg 3f-Mar-2024

Total Outstanding 31-Mar-2023

Total Exposure to fop Four NPA Accounts

927.45

7.604.79

Status of Non-Performing Assets

Particulars

Total Cutstanding 31-Mar-2024

Total Qutstanding 31-Mar-2023

(@}
&)

@
(b)

Grass Non-Performing Assets
Related Partics

Other than Related partics

Met Non-Performing Assets

Related Parsics

Other than Related parties

Assels acquired in satisfaction of debt

927.45

462.45

32,693.72

1,649.19

Movement cf NPA

Particulars

Tutal Qutstanding 31-Mar-2024

Total Qutstanding 31-Mar-2023

[i)] Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 1BL.81% 62.3%%

(i Movement of NPAs (Gross)

{8)  Opening balance 32,643.72 35,616.38

) Additions during the year - -

(€} Reductions during the year 31,716.27 2972.66

{d)  Closing balance 92745 32,643.72

(iif)  Movement of Net NPAs

{8} Opening balance 1,649.19 3,319.94

() Additions duning the year -

() Reductions during ihe year 1,186.74 1L,670.75

@)  Closing balance 46245 1,64909

(iv)  Movement of provisions fer NPAs (exeluding provisions on standard assets)

(e} Opening balance 30,994.52 3229643

{b)  Provisions made during tic year - 117754

@ Wn(::-o)ﬂ write-back of excess 30,529.52 247943
provisions

d) __Clasing balance 465.00 30,954.52
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{xviii}

(xix)

{xx)

(xi)

(xxii)

{xxiif)

xxiv)

(xxv)

Sectoral Exposure

Total Exposure NPAs oct of Total Advances of NPAs te Total Advances
Sectar Tetal Outstanding 31- Total Ontstanding 31 Tota} Outstanding Tatal Q0 i -
E B & g Tao utstanding 31
Mar-2024 Msr-2023 31 Mar 2024 Mar-2023 3 Mar 24 EMacE
I MSME 4.570.8 - 4.570.85 - 00%
2 Corporaic Borrowers 1,372.09 2527625 92745 24,281.95 67.50% 96%
3 Services 3,790.92 - 3,790.92 - 100%
3 Other personal loans - - - -
Provisions and contingencies
Break up of Provisions and Contingencies 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Provisions for depreciation on Investmené
Provision for Diminution in value of Non-Current investments
Provision towards NPA 465.00 30,994.53
Provision lor Standard Assets 287.44 40.51
Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
a})  Direct Exposure
(i} Commercial Real Estate-
Lcndmg secured hy morigages on commercial 1eal estate (office building, relail space, multipurpase commercial premises. multi-famiby
1 buiid li-tenanted commercial premiscs, industrial or warchouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and L175.04
conslruction, ele.) E.\posun: would also inchude non-fund based (NFB) limits ) T
Exposure to Capital Market
Particulars 31-Mar-24 3f-Mar-23
. direct investment in equity shares, eanverlible bonds, converiible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutuz! funds the corpus of which
@ is nol exclusively invested in ¢orporate debl,
. advances for any other purposes where shares or conventible bends or converlible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are 5375.50
00 pken as primary sceurily; ° e
advances [or any other purposes to the extent secured by the colfateral securily of shares or convertible bands or converiible debentures or
(i) wnits of equily onented mutuat funds i ¢, where the primary sccurity other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / wnits - -
of equily oriented mutual funds 'does nol fully cover i advanees;
Total Exposure to Capital Market - 5375.50
Assets sold (o Securitization Company/ Reconstruction Company (SC/ RC):
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1 Number of Accounts 57 -
2 Aggregale oulstanding of accounts sold to SC/ RC (Net of Provision) . 1,150 -
3 Aggregale consideration 1,321 ]
4 Additional consideration realized in respeet of accounts transferred in earlier years = -
5 Aggregate gein/ (less} over nel book value 171 =
Particulars 3i-Mar-24 3 -Mar-23
Aggignmenl lransaclions underiaken 3 3
Details of Non-performing financied assets purchased:
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Number of accounts purchased during the year _ .
Aggregate Outsianding { crore} - -
Of the above munber of accounts restnictured during the year = -
Agerepale Quistanding ( crore) . -
Non-performing financial assets sold to other than SC/RC
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
1 Number of Agcounts = N

2 Agegregale oulstanding of accounts sold to SO/ RE
3 Aggregale consideration

The company has not underiaken any exchange traded imlerest rate {IR) derivatives during Lhe quarter,
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{avi)

Maturity Pattern of assets and liabilities:

1 month to 2
Particulars I day to 30 days months

2 monihs te 3
maenths

3 months to &
months

& months to 1 year

Ited years

3 to 5 years Over 5 years

Total

LIABILITIES
Borrowing from Banks

Market borrowings

TOTAL - -

ASSETS

Advances ]

Investments 63

207.0% -

271.04

907.09
934,43

TOTAL - 63

907 871

1,841.52
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IFCI FACTORS LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All anounts are in Rupees crores unless otherwise stated)

42 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Rs.in crore
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12
Total Total
months months months months
I. ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 0.32 - 0.32 131.53 - 131.53
(b) Bank Balance other than (a) above - - - - - -
{c) Derivative financial instruments - - “ = - -
(d) Receivables - - - - = -
(€} Loans - 9.07 9.07 2.84 23.60 26.44
(D) Investments .63 8.71 9.34 - 10.71 10.71
(g) Other Finarcial assets 0.26 - 0.26 2.54 - 2.54
Total financial assets 1.21 17.79 18.99 136.91 3431  171.22
(2) Non-financial Assets
(a) Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - -
{(b) Equity accounted investces - - - - - -
{c) Current tax assets (Net) - 0.71 0.71 - 116 1.16
(d) Deferred tax Assets (Net) - - - - 86.38 §6.38
(e) Investment Property - - - - - -
(f) Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.01 0.0) - 0.05 0.05
(g} Capital work-in-progress - - - - - -
(h} Other Intangible assets - 0.07 0.07 - 0.10 0.10
(1) Other non-financial assets 0.79 - 0.7¢ 0.98 - 0.98
Total non-financial assets 0.79 0.79 1.58 0.98 87.69 88.66
Assets held for sale - - - - - -
Total assets 2.00 18.57 20.57 137.89 12200 259.88
. LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
(1) Financial Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
{a)Pavables
(I) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - - - - = =
and small enferprises
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other - - - - - -

than micro enterprises and smal] enterprises

(ITy Other Pavables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - = = = . -
and small enterprises
(11) total cutstanding dues of creditors other - = =
than micro enterprises and small enterprises
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(b) Debt Securities - - - - 141.08 141.08
(c) Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) - - - = - -
(d) Subordinated Liabilities - - - - - -
(e) Other financtal liabilities 2.39 - 2.39 12.94 - 12.94
Total financial liabilities 2.39 - 239 12.94 141.08  154.02

(2) Non-¥inancial Liabilities

(a) Provisions - 4.20 4,20 0.16 2.02 2,18
(t) Other non-financial liabilities 0.06 - 0.06 0.09 - 0.09
Total non-financial liabilities 0.06 4.20 4.26 0.25 2.02 2.27
Total Liabilities 2.45 4.20 6.65 13.19  143.10 156.29
Net (0.46) 14.38 13.92 124.70 {21.11) 103.59

43 During the period the company did not undertake any derivative transaction.

44 The financial statements are prepared as per the "Ind AS Compliant Schedule 11T to Companies Act, 2013 for Non Banking
Financial Companies
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45. Disclosure on Moratorium for COVID 19 Regulatory Package and others:-
(i) Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium / deferment was extended;

Moratorium was extended in NIL cases as on 31.3.2024) (Nil during the year ended 31.3.2023) as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Amount Amount
SMA Category No. of cases

(Rs. lakh) No. of cases (Rs. lakh)
NO SMA 0 0 0 0
SMA 1 0 0 0 0
SMA 2 0 0 0 0
Total 0 0 0 0

(ii) Respective amount where asset classification benefits is extended.
As on 31.3.2024, asset classification benefit had been extended in nil cases (nil as on 31.03.2023).

(iii) Provisions made during the FY 2021;
Nil Provision made during the year. (Nil during last year ended 31.03.2023).
(iv) Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages and the residual

provisions in terms of paragraph 6.

Provision of Nil created last year was adjusted as the account slipped into NPA category. (Nil, As provision has
been created as on 31/03/2023)

Provision of Nil created last year was adjusted as the account slipped into NPA category.

V) In accordance with the RBI Circular No. RBI/ 2021-22/ 17 DOR.STR.REC.4/ 21.04.048/ 2021-22 dated April 7,
2021 and the methodology for calculation of interest on interest based on guidance issued by Indian Banks'
Association, the Company has put in place 2 Board approved policy to refund / adjust interest on interest charged to
borrowers during the moratorium period, i.e. March 1, 2020 to August 31, 2020 i.e. for the moratorium period.
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46
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in Rupaes in lacs unless otherwise stated)

——

Outstandlng for following periods from due date of payment

Less then | Less than More than
As at 31 March 2024 6 Months |1 year 1-2 Years | 2-3 years 3 yoars Total
(i) MSME - - - - -
(i} Cthers {provision for expenses) 2.25 = = g = 2,25
(ii) Disputed dues —-MSME - = s = “
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - = = z -
| Total e ; i e HETRLE

[ By Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

As at 31 March 2023 ’ SL ;5::&1" 1"3::':““ 1-2 Years | 2-3 years sﬁx:rzha" Tatal
(i} MSME - - - = -
(i) Others (provision for expenses) 10.10 - = = -| 10.10
(iii) Disputed dues —-MSME - = = = -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - = = - -

Total - SRRy 10

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as
at all the reporting dates. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent the status of such parties identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RESERVE BANK OF INDIA CIRCULAR NO. RBI2(19-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD. NO.109/22,10,106/2019-20

Assel Classification as per RBI|Asset Gross Loss Allowances Net Carrying Provision Difference
Norms Classification Carrying (Provisions) Amount Required as between
as per Ind AS Amount as as per required per IRACP Norms Ind AS 109
109 per under provisions
Ind AS Ind AS 109 and IRACP Norms
) @ G @ 5= (3)-(4) ) N =1{4}- (6]
Standard Stage 1 445 19 420 283 264
Stape 2 = - - T - -
Subtotal 445 9 426 283 -264
Non Performing Asseis{NPA)
lard(Sub Total - A) Stape 3 = - = 3 :
Doubtful
Upto | Year Stage 3 = = - k- 3
1103 Years [Stage 3 - - - z =
More than 3 years Stage 3 927 356 371 485 31
Doubtful {Sulr Total - B) 927 556 371 465 91
Loss {Sub Totad - C) Stage 3 & = = - -
1l of WPA {Sub Total - 927 556 371 465 91
(A)+(BY+C
Stage 1 445 19 426 283 -264
Stage 2 S = 2 £
Stage 3 927 530 371 465 4]
|Tutal 1,372 575 797 748 -172.63
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48

49

51

52

53

54
55

56

Advances do not include write-off cases against which legal procesdings in the nature of criminal and / or civil or pending, Legal expenses on these cases are being incarred
and debited to profit & Loss accounl.

As per amendments made to CSR. Provisions brovght by the Companies {(Amendment) Act 2020 read with Companics (Corporate Social Responsibility Poliey) Amendment
Rales 2021 in view of consistent losses faced by the company and substantial erosion of Net Worth of the Company, the Companry has decided not to creale any CSE

nrraneinn in the cleeent vaar

Previous year figures have been re-prouped/ re-arranged wherever necessary, to conform to current period’s presentation.
Stape 3 income has not been recogaized in the books of Accounts,

The investor (IFCI Limited) reserves the right ef recompense (on conversion of perpetizal debt in to couity) to the extent of Rs.14.28 crora (on account of Interest on
perpetual debt). However, any payment on this account shall be subject to following terms & conditions:

a. The company is in profit in the previous financial year.

b. Mutual consent on the tenms & conditions of recompense.

c. Such Payment should not lead the company tumning i to losses.

The Company had assigned its portfolio of 57 accounts during the financial year for a total consideration of Rs.13.21 crore. The net book value of 57 accounts as on
March 31, 2023 is Rs.11.50 crore. The sgle of portfelio comprsing of 57 accounts lead to a reversal of Deferred Tax Asset of Rs. 83.67 crore,

The Board of [FCI Factors Limited has approved monetization of the remaining 3 assets throuph sale / assipnment process.

The balance DTA of Rs. 2.71 crore has been reversed due to uncertainty in fiture profitability.
Liquidity Coverage Ratio as on 3 Lst March 2024 Rs in Lacs

Cash & Bank Balance & other High Quality liquid assets at the

95.32

end of the March 31, 2024
Liahilities Payable In Next 30 days{up to April 30,2024} 49
LCR 1.95

The total ameunt of provisions requird as per [GAAP is Rs.7.48 crore whereas the amount of provisions required to be made as per IND AS against the NPA accounts is
Rs.5.56 crore and the totzl provisions required to done as per IND AS is Rs.5.75 crore. The difference between the provision as per [IGAAP and Ind AS has been transferred
to Impairment Reserve A/c. The table below enumerates the comparative status of provisioning between IGAAP and IND AS.

Rs. In Cr
| IGAAP Ind AS
{Particulars Amount Pravision Amount Provision -ECL %
NPA-100% in Nature 9.27 4.65 9.27 5.56 60%
Good Debtors 4.45 y 2.83 4.45 0.19 4.25%
Stress debtors - 0.00 - - 31.0%
Total 13.72 7.48 13.72 5.75 1.73

Net Reversal Rs.1.73crore, *

*The company has ¢reated impairment allowance on its loan assets at higher of ECL assessment/ RBI norms on portfoiio fevel, based on
hamaogeneous grouping of loans.,

Tn terms of our Report of even date

For Raghu Nath Rai & Co. For and on behalf of Board
Chartered Accoantants

Firm Reggstration No. 00054 1N

(CA Arjun Mehta) (Alan Savip Pacheco) (Sachikanta Mishra)
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Membership No. 097685 DIN: 03497265 DIN: 02735068
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